
AGENDA 
ADA TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MONDAY JUNE 10, 2024 at 12:00 P.M.  
ADA TOWNSHIP HALL 

7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE 

I. CALL TO ORDER
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
III. MOMENT OF SILENCE
IV. ROLL CALL
V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
VI. GENERAL TOWNSHIP BUSINESS

Motion to approve minutes and accept and file reports/communications under consent
agenda

A. APPROVAL OF TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES
1. Regular Board Meeting Minutes – May 28, 2024

B. RECEIVE AND FILE VARIOUS REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS – None
1. Trail Committee Meeting Summary – May 2, 2024
2. Grand River Greenway Section 5-6-7 Kickoff Meeting Minutes – May 23, 2024
3. Friends of the Amy Van Andel Library Annual Report to Membership – May 23,

2024

VII. APPROVAL OF WARRANTS
A. Township General Warrants
B. Consider Fulton St. Trail Project Change Order #2 from Wyoming Excavators Inc for

an Increase of $4,950.00 for Additional Riprap Needed
C. Consider Fulton St. Trail Project Final Pay Application (#5) to Wyoming Excavators

Inc. in the Amount of $44,950.00

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit of 3 Minutes Per Speaker)

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS –

A. Resolution R-061024-1: A Resolution Concerning Township Responsibilities for
Private Waste Treatment Facilities Serving “Hidden Lakes” Planned Unit
Development

X. PUBLIC HEARING – None



XI.       NEW BUSINESS  
A. Presentation of State Tribute to Clerk Jackie Smith – Representative Rachel Hood & 

Ryan Knight, Chief of Staff to Senator Mark Huizenga  
B. Kent District Library Quarterly Report – Scott Ninemeier, Branch Manager 
C. Resolution R-061024-2: Resolution Authorizing Road Closures for Ada Criterium 

Bike Race Organized by Cosdi Racing on Saturday August 31, 2024   
D. Consider Proposal from Moore+Bruggink for Design + Construction Engineering of 

Grand River Drive Trail Maintenance Project for an Amount not to Exceed 
$45,000.00 

E. Consider Proposal from Moore+Bruggink for Design & Construction Engineering of 
Hall Street/Fernridge Lift Station and Forcemain Improvement Project for an 
Amount Not to Exceed $161,000.00  

F. Appoint Julius Suchy, Township Manager as Township Representative for Grand 
Valley Metro Council Board  

G. Consider Formal Acceptance of Clerk Jackie Smith Retirement Letter with Effective 
Retirement Date of June 24, 2024 and Discuss Next Steps 
 

XII.       DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
A. Township Manager Report – June 5, 2024 
B. Assessing Department Report – May 30, 2024 
C. Building, Facilities & Grounds Department Report – June 10, 2024 
D. Downtown Development Authority Director Report – June 10, 2024 
E. Fire Department Report – May, 2024 
F. Historical Society Museum Manager Report – May, 2024 
G. Parks & Recreation Department Report – June 4, 2024 
H. Planning Department Report – May, 2024 
I. Engineering Monthly Report – June 5, 2024 
J. F&V Operations & Resource Management Utility Report – June 3, 2024 

 
XIII.      BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 

 
XIV.       CLOSED SESSION –  
 

A. Consider Written Legal Opinion Pursuant to MCL 15.268 Section 8(1)(h) of the 
Michigan Open Meetings Act 

 
XV.        OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit of 3 Minutes Per Speaker) 

 
XVI.       ADJOURNMENT 



VI A1





Summary of 5/2 Trails Committee Meeting


During the public comment portion of the meeting the committee heard from three 
residents who all encouraged the construction of pathway along the north side of 
Pettis.  They were eager to have a connection from Chief Hazy Cloud Park to the 
existing trail at Vergennes.  


Cameron Timmer was introduced as a new member of the trail committee.  

Approval was granted for Corbin to handle the bid process for the Wayfinding 

rollout.  The committee felt their expertise would expedite the Wayfinding timeline.


Discussion of Potential Projects

• Rix Street - Since the best solution for this trail involves FHPS it will be on hold until

a meeting with the new Superintendent is possible.  Forecast to be late summer
early fall.

• Kamp Twins is on hold until the exact requirements the RR will require are
established.

• The Honey Creek and McCabe sections were discussed along with other future
projects were briefly discussed.  There is a need to prioritize future trails so we have
projects to go along with the Knapp St Bridge and Roselle St Bridge.  Both of those
are proceeding according to plan.

• The need for trail head facilities and amenities along the trails will also be a focus of
the committee going forward.

Pettis Ave Phase II

• After considering further investigation of alternate routes the group decisively sided

with proceeding on the North Side of Pettis as quickly as possible.   There was also
a strong desire to seek out enhanced pedestrian safety measures for the crossings
on this segment and throughout the trail system.

1

VI B1



Kent County Grand River Greenway Project 
Sections 5-7 per Penultimate Trail Plan 

Kickoff Meeting Minutes 5/23/2024 
I. Introductions

a) County / Project Partners
b) LRE Team:

1) LRE: Prime Engineer
i. Dan Fredricks, PE – QA/QC
ii. Kyle Patrick, PE – Project Manager / Primary Contact

(cell 616-308-7072) patrick@lremi.com
iii. Neil DeWitt, PE – Senior Engineer

2) GT Bridge (formerly TEG):  Todd Stelma, PE – Structural Engineer
3) SME:  Geotechnical Engineer

i. Andy Bolton, PE – Project Manager
ii. Paul Anderson, PE – Senior Engineer

4) MCSA:  As needed for Landscape Architecture
c) Establish Chain of Communication:

1) Lead contact will be between LRE and Brian Mulligan (Kent County
Parks) with carbon copies to Julius Suchy at Ada Township and
Todd Olson at Cannon Township.

II. Establish Project Goals and Expectations
a) Discuss Goals / Expectations of Project Partners.
b) Project Scope / Understanding:

1) Per Kent County RFP.
2) Construct 17,900 linear feet of paved shared-use path (8-ft min.

width with 2-ft shoulders) along Pettis Avenue from Cannonsburg
Road to Knapp Street (Sections 5-7 on Penultimate Plan).  LRE will
work with respective townships to ensure that desired pathway
width is provided.

3) USFWS National Wetland Inventory Maps note the presence of
regulated wetlands along segments of Pettis Avenue, primarily
north of 5-Mile Road.  In addition, there are 4 stream crossings
along the proposed path alignment, the largest being Egypt Creek.

4) Critical Elements:
i. Modular Block Walls:

a. 7,300 square feet +/-
b. Style preference:  Aesthetically pleasing large block

system such as the Redi-Rock.

VI B2

mailto:patrick@lremi.com


Page 2 

ii. Timber Boardwalk:
a. Span apporximatley 900 linear feet of regulated

wetlands or where terrain requires to stay within ROW.
b. Style preference:  Parks to follow-up accordingly.  Deck

/ rail to match township standards but sub-strucure
may vary (be consistent throghout project).

iii. Clear-span pre-fabricated truss bridge over Egypt Creek:
a. Style  Prefeence:  Contech-Continental Bridge, which

offers a variety of truss options
5) Easement Acquisition:  LRE assumes path with be primarily

constructed within existing Road ROW.
6) Discuss other potential trail enhancements (trail spurs, lighting,

signage, other amenities, etc.)
7) Estimated Construction Cost:  $3.9 million +/-

c) Final Deliverables:
1) 1 hard copy of bid documents to County, 1 digital set for bidding.

d) Project Schedule:
1) RFP indicates construction to be complete by December 31, 2025.
2) Critical path will be based on EGLE permitting and easement

acquisition (if necessary).
3) EGLE pre-application meeting will be held as soon as preliminary

trail alignment is complete (summer 2024).  Identify potential
construction restrictions (T&E species, etc.).

4) Consider breaking project into multiple divisions / contracts to
complete portions of project that do not require EGLE permitting.

Tentative Project Schedule 

Task 
2024 2025 

Spring Summer Fall Winter Spring Summer Fall 
Kickoff Meeting 

Topographic Survey 
Geotechnical Analysis 

Preliminary Design 
Permitting 

Final Design 
Bidding 

Construction 

e) Progress Meetings
1) Schedule next meeting (50% Design Review / after EGLE pre-

application meeting / response) – Late August 2024



Page 3 

f) Community Engagement:
1) MCSA will provide as-needed public outreach support (most likely

won’t be necessary)

III. Review LRE Proposal
a) Project Approach / Scope of Services
b) Budget / Level of Effort

IV. Other Items
a) Bid though Kent County purchasing department.

1) Final Bid Documents to be provided to Kent County 3 weeks
(minimum) prior to being available to bidders.

2) Bid Period:  4 weeks
3) Project shall be constructed using prevailing wages.



FRIENDS OF THE AMY VAN ANDEL LIBRARY 
ANNUAL REPORT TO MEMBERSHIP 

May 23, 2024 

Members, Friends of the Amy Van Andel Library: 

A�er focusing in the prior 2 years on developing a sound organiza�onal structure with 
appropriate policies and prac�ces in place, the Library Friends in 2023 emphasized increasing 
our financial support for enhancements to library programs and facili�es. We also were able to 
increase our financial resources and grow our fund balance, as reported by our Treasurer.  

Support of Library Programs and Facili�es: 

The $4,747 which Kris� reported was spent last year on library support was significantly higher 
than the $2,994 in 2022 and $458 provided in our inaugural year of 2021. Our support for the 
library last year included the following: 

• purchase of addi�onal hardware for hanging artwork in the quarterly art exhibits in the
library.

• an addi�onal area rug in the Childrens’ Programming Room.

• a new table and 4 chairs for dedicated use for jigsaw puzzles on the second floor lobby.

• manipula�ve furnishings for the childrens’ “Wonderknook” play area

• appearance of a sled and sled dog team at the library during the annual “Tinsel, Treats and
Trolleys” holiday event.

Our support for library program and facility enhancements will con�nue to grow in 2024. 

Quarterly Ar�st Exhibits: 

In early 2023, the quarterly art exhibit program was formalized with the development of an art 
exhibit policy, an ar�st applica�on form and appointment of Friends-member Betsy Ratzsch as 
our volunteer Art Curator. Throughout 2023, our partnership with KDL and the Township in 
hos�ng quarterly art exhibits in the library con�nued, with a full year of 4 exhibits.   

Betsy has leveraged her connec�ons in the art community to provide us with a varied selec�on 
of quality art that enhances the library experience for regular patrons and atracts new visitors 
who might not otherwise have visited.  

Betsy came up with a formal name for our quarterly exhibits – “Gallery in the Stacks,” and we 
are in the process of ge�ng a permanent sign iden�fying the gallery.   

VI B3



Friends of the Amy Van Andel Library 
Annual Report to Membership 
May 23, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 
In 2023, we hosted the following ar�sts: 
 
January-March: our own Betsy Ratzsch 
April-June:  Lou Wolf Vallance 
July-September: Janet Teunis 
October-December: Dorelle Brock 
 
A�er our 4th quarter ar�st, Dorelle Brock, organized and paid for his own ar�st recep�on, 
complete with alcohol-free cra� cocktails, the Library Friends Board decided to allocate funding 
in the 2024 budget for ar�st recep�ons at the start of each exhibit, although the beverages we 
supply are limited to juice and coffee. 
 
This is going beyond our 2023 ac�vity, but our current exhibit, running through the end of June, 
features 4 local ar�sts including our own Shanna Handelsman. Their opening recep�on 
generated our largest atendance yet, with approximately 100 people atending. 
 
We received statewide recogni�on of the “Gallery in the Stacks” program this year. We were 
given one of 2 “Merit Awards” by the Friends of Michigan Libraries for “carrying out an 
outstanding project during 2023 that had a significant impact on your library’s services to the 
community.” 
 
Friends Marke�ng and Membership Development: 
 
We have also expanded our marke�ng of the Library Friends, to raise community awareness of 
who we are and what we do:   
 
• In March, 2023, we shared a booth with KDL staff at the annual Forest Hills Community Expo, 
distribu�ng membership applica�on forms along with sweet treats. 
 
• Through June and July, we had a booth at the weekly Ada Farmers Market, selling used 
childrens books at bargain prices, and distribu�ng membership forms. 
 
• Friends members marched in Ada’s annual July 4 parade along with KDL staff. 
  
• We had another successful “Friends Fall Social” event in the library courtyard in September, 
atended by about 40 of our members and several new members. 
 
• In October, the Friends had a booth at the annual “Pumpkin Prowl” event, at which we 
distributed a huge volume of candy to many hundreds of children accompanied by their 
parents. Thanks to Shanna Handelsman for the artwork on our “Heads in Holes” photo prop 
that featured Halloween-themed art. 
 
Our marke�ng efforts have not resulted in significant growth in our membership, however, 
which con�nues to hover in the 45-55 range. One area where we need to improve is in member 
reten�on.    



Friends of the Amy Van Andel Library 
Annual Report to Membership 
May 23, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Used Book Sales: 
 
In addi�on to our ongoing used-book sales in the library, we had two special sales events in 
2023, in May and December. Our used book sales Coordinator, Shanna Handelsman, has made 
improvements to our store area in the library with the help of volunteers, including alphabe�cal 
sor�ng of the adult fic�on area and new subject categories in the nonfic�on area. 
 
One area of concern is that sales at our semi-annual used book sale events have been on a 
downward trend since peaking in 2021. The Board is trying to understand and address possible 
reasons for this trend, and develop addi�onal sources of revenue, so that we are less reliant on 
used book sale income. 
 
On a more posi�ve note, our inventory of collec�ble used books on EBay grew significantly, and 
our total 2023 Ebay sales of $293 grew significantly from $209 in 2022 and $0 sold on EBay in 
2021. We have already sold over $530 on EBay this year. 
 
Closing: 
 
We con�nue to look for ways to atract and retain members, grow our used book sale program 
and develop alterna�ve income sources, all to increase our funding support for the library. 



VII A























MEMORANDUM

Date: 6/3/24 

TO:   Ada Township Board 
FROM:   Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: Fulton St. Trail Change Order #2 and Pay Application #5 

Background: 

At the July 10, 2023 board meeting, the Township awarded the Fulton St. Trail project to Wyoming 
Excavators Inc. Construction for $1,639,496.00. Change Order #1 for an increase of $61,815.00 was 
approved by the board at the January 8th meeting. This increased the total project cost to 
$1,701,311.00.  

The attached proposed change order #2 is for $4,950.00 and would increase the total project cost to 
$1,706,261.00. This change order is to cover additional riprap that needed to be placed in areas that 
had erosion concerns.  

Wyoming Excavators Inc. has provided the attached pay application #5 in the amount of $44,950.00. 
The pay application includes release of the $40,000.00 in retainage as well as the $4,950.00 for 
change order #2. This pay application covers the period of 12/2/23 – 5/31/24.  

Mr. Groenenboom from Moore+Bruggink has provided a letter explaining the change order and 
recommendation for approval and will be present at the meeting to discuss the pay application and to 
answer any questions.  

Recommendation: 

Staff would recommend approval of change order #2 and pay application #5. The change order was 
necessary to include additional riprap to stabilize the bank. The project has been completed and 
retainage can be released.  

Requested Motion(s): 

1. Motion to Approve Fulton St. Trail Change Order #2 for an Increase of $4,950.00 for additional
Riprap Added to the Project.

2. Motion to Approve Fulton St. Trail Final Pay Application (#5) to Wyoming Excavators Inc. in the
Amount of $44,950.00.

VII B & C



 

2020 Monroe Avenue NW | Grand Rapids, MI 49505-6298 
T [616] 363 9801 | F [616] 363 2480 | W mbce.com 

May 31, 2024 

Re: Legacy Park Trail 
 Project No. 220208.01 

Mr. Julius Suchy 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Ada, Michigan 49301 

Dear Mr. Suchy: 

The Fulton Street Trail was completed last fall, and you have been withholding $40,000 in 
final payment to the contractor until we could confirm proper growth of the grass on the 
steep slopes. 

During our final inspection in April, we noticed several areas of erosion occurring along 
the trail. Wyoming Excavators repaired these areas earlier this month by placing additional 
rip-rap. Since the rip-rap is a unit price contract item, they are requesting payment in the 
amount of $4,950 for this work, and we have enclosed Change Order No. 2 in the amount 
of $4,950 for the additional rip-rap. In addition to the payment for rip-rap, they are also 
requesting the $40,000 in retainage be released, so the total due to Wyoming Excavators 
is then $44,950. This is the final payment due to Wyoming Excavators. 

Wyoming Excavators will be submitting their Waiver of Lien for the project, and we 
recommend final payment in the amount of $44,950 be made to Wyoming Excavators 
after you receive the Waiver of Lien. 

The construction contract requires a guarantee of materials and workmanship by the 
contractor for a period of one year. The project was completed last November, and we 
recommend that this section of trail be reviewed in October to ensure that the 
workmanship and materials have remained in satisfactory condition. 

I will be at the next Township Board meeting to review the change order and pay 
recommendation. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Steven C. Groenenboom, P.E. 
Project Engineer 

Attachments 



 

2020 Monroe Avenue NW | Grand Rapids, MI 49505‐6298 
T [616] 363 9801 | F [616] 363 2480 | W mbce.com 

CHANGE ORDER 
CONTRACTOR: Wyoming Excavators, Inc. PROJECT NO.: 220208.01 
 9580 5 Mile Road NE CHANGE ORDER NO.: 2 
 Ada, Michigan 49301-9740 DATE: May 31, 2024 
  AMOUNT: $4,950.00 Increase 
PROJECT: Fulton Street Pedestrian Trail 
    
The following changes are hereby incorporated into the contract for the construction of the subject 
project: 

Increased Quantities: 

 Unit 
Quantity 

Difference Price Total 
     

1. Rip-rap over Geotextile Fabric  Lsum 1 $4,950.00 $4,950.00 
     
Total All Change Order #2 Items    $$4,950.00 
     

The amount of the contract will be increased in the sum of $[amount] with no additional contract 
time. 

Original Total Contract Amount: $1,639,496.00 

Total Contract Amount after Change Order #1: $1,701,311.00 

New Total Contract Amount with this change: $1,706,261.00 

Prepared By: Steven C. Groenenboom, P.E. 
 
Requested By: Wyoming Excavators 
 
 
 
Recommended by:  Date: 5/31/2024 
 Moore & Bruggink, Inc.   
 
 
 
Approved by:  Date:  
 Ada Township   

 



PROJECT: Distribution to:

5 OWNER 

5/31/2024 ARCHITECT 

220208.01 CONTRACTOR

7/28/2023

CONTRACT FOR: FULTON STREET PEDESTRIAN TRAIL 

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

By: Date:
State of:

County of:

me this 31 day of May

9. BALANCE TO FINISH, INCLUDING RETAINAGE

By:

Michigan
Kent

This certificate is not negotiable. The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the Contractor named    herein issuance, payment and 

acceptance of payment are without prejudice to any rights of there   Owner or Contractor under this Contrcact  Net changes by order 64,095.00$  -$  

Total Changes approved in previous months. 59,145.00$  -$  this Application and on the Continuation Sheet that are Date:                  ARCHITECT:

Approved this month 4,950.00$  -$  
Total -$  -$  

(Line 3 less line 6) -$  AMOUNT CERTIFIED -$                              

Change order summary Additions deductions (Attach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied for. Initial all figures on

Total retainage (line 5.A) -$  ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

6. TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE 1,703,591.00$  
(Line 4 less line 5 total) In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the data comprising    this application, the 

Architect certifies to the Owner that to the best of the Architect's knowledge,    information, and belief the Work has progressed as 
indicated, the quality of the Work is in    accordance with the Contract Documents, and the Contractor is entitled to payment of 
the AMOUNT CERTIFIED.

7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PMT: 1,658,641.00$  
(Line 6 from prior certificate)

8. CURRENT PAYMENT DUE 44,950.00$  

(Columns D & E on G703)

0 % of Stored Materials  Notary public:

(Column F on G703) My Commission expires:

4. COMPLETED & STORED TO DATE 1,703,591.00$  
(Column G on G703)

5. RETAINAGE: Subscribed and sworn to before:
-$  % of Completed Work 

2. NET CHANGE BY CHANGE ORDERS 66,765.00$  CONTRACTOR
3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE 1,706,261.00$  5/31/2024

The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractors knowledge, Work	

covered by this Application for payment has been completed in accordance with the Contract	
Documents, that all amounts have been paid by the Contractor for Work for which previous
Certificates for Payment were issued and payments received from the Owner
and that current payment shown herein is now due.

Application is made for payment, as shown below, in connection with the 

Contract Continuation Sheet, AIA Document G703, is attached.

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM. 1,639,496.00$  

FROM SUBCONTRACTOR: CONTRACT DATE:

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT AIA DOCUMENT G702
TO CONTRACTOR:
Wyoming Excavators, Inc.
9580 5 Mile Rd NE
Ada, MI 49301

FULTON STREET PEDESTRIAN TRAIL     ADA 
TOWNSHIP

APPLICATION NO.:
PERIOD TO: 

PROJECT NO.:

PO NUMBER:

$44,950

ryanc
Stamp

ryanc
Ryans Signature

ryanc
Nate

ryanc
Typewritten Text
August 13, 2029



MEMORANDUM

Date: 06.05.24 

TO: Ada Township Board 
FROM: John D. Said AICP, Director of Planning 
RE: Resolution R-061024-1 - 3201 Egypt Valley (Hidden Lakes) – Private Sewerage 

System Development Agreement 

Background/Introduction 
The attached resolution is provided for Township Board review and possible action, along with 
the private sewer system development agreement, for the Hidden Lakes project at 3201 Egypt 
Valley.  The proposed project consists of 12 home lots on a 60-acre site.  A number of concerns 
from Board members identified at the May 13 and May 28 meetings are further discussed below, 
along with responses.   

Agreement Decision 
The Board is asked to decide whether they wish to approve this agreement.  If so, there are a 
few additional clarifications that Staff requests the Board review and provide direction on. 
Depending on the outcome of those, the developer will also need to confirm whether they wish 
to pursue the agreement.  If the agreement does not move forward, then the developer will need 
to amend the Planned Unit Development approval (PUD) and seek additional approvals through 
the State of Michigan for the private sanitary sewer system.  These are further detailed below. 

Hidden Lakes Proposed Development - Approval 
Hidden Lakes was approved by the Township as a Planned Unit Development (PUD), with the 
Township Board approving the Preliminary PUD on 10.10.22, and final approval by the Planning 
Commission on 8.17.23.  The plan consists of 12 home sites on a 60-acre lot.  The home lots are 
relatively small so as to preserve a large conservation/wetland area primarily in the middle of the 
site (which has a conservation easement in place for its preservation).  As such, each lot is too 
small to accommodate individual septic fields, prompting the proposed community septic system. 
A condition of final PUD approval specifies that the project shall “obtain Township approval for a 
written agreement between the Township and the developer/homeowners association for 
perpetual maintenance of the community septic system.”  If the agreement is not approved by 
the Township Board, the applicant will need to return to the Planning Commission to request 
approval of an amended PUD. 

A copy of the Planning Commission minutes from the final PUD approval is attached.  At that 
meeting, the draft agreement was briefly discussed; an inquiry about funding to maintain the 
septic system was answered by the applicant’s engineer. 

Agreement Language - Options 
At the May 13 and 28 meetings, Township Board members expressed concerns with the draft 
agreement language mandating Township takeover of the septic system in the event of a serious 
failure by the developer/homeowners association (HOA) to meet their obligations.  In part to 
address this, a “hand back” clause was added (Section 3.(e)), which would permit (but not 

IX A



 

require) the Township to return control of the system to the HOA with proper notice where the 
circumstances giving rise to the Township’s initial takeover has been resolved as determined by 
the Township. As well, the wording in Sec. 3.(b) was noted as a concern; this section includes 
mandatory language (“...the Township shall assume ownership and control of the Sewerage 
system.” in the event of a serious failure).  If the Board prefers, language can be altered to make 
the takeover optional, so that the section would read “…the Township may, at its option, 
assume ownership and control of the Sewerage System.”  The pertinent text is in bold font and 
highlighted in yellow on the attached draft agreement. 
 
Board direction is requested regarding both of these issues.  For the Board’s information, if it is 
decided that the “hand back” clause is kept in the agreement, and/or language is included to 
provide for optional takeover of the septic system by the Township, then the developer will be 
required to go through additional approvals by the State of Michigan which would not be required 
with mandatory Township takeover and no “hand back” clause. Essentially this might have the 
effect of rendering the Township’s approval moot from the standpoint of EGLE. Given this, the 
developer may be unwilling to support this option as it would require them to meet the 
requirements of escrow with the Township, as well as EGLE. 
 
Financial Considerations – Joint Escrow Account and Sewerage System Reserve Fund  
Questions regarding financial considerations also arose at the May 13 and 28 Board meetings.  
The following is provided in response: 
 
Escrow Account:  Sec. 8 of the draft agreement specifies that $100,000 will be provided in a Joint 
Escrow Account, to be provided to the Township in the event of Township takeover of the sewer 
system.  (The Township’s engineering consultants - Fleis & Vandenbrink Operations & Resources 
Management, indicated that this amount is adequate in the event of a major failure and takeover.)  
The Joint Escrow Account, which would be maintained in perpetuity, would only be available to 
the Township for operations, maintenance, repair, etc. of the sewer system, and may be increased 
or decreased over time to reflect changing costs. (Board direction is requested on whether the 
Board would prefer retention of the language allowing the amount to change to reflect differing 
costs or whether to have it omitted [the language in question is noted in bold text and 
highlighted].) 
 
This Escrow Account is not subject to replenishment.  However, in the event of system failure 
and the Township assuming operation and ownership, the property owners are contractually 
obligated to pay all of the Township’s costs associated with the Township operating and owning 
the system.   That obligation is secured by the joint escrow and only the Township may draw on 
the joint escrow – no other party.   The Township has, in addition to the joint escrow, other 
mechanisms to ensure that the property owners are meeting their contractual obligations to 
reimburse the Township.  The Township can place liens on the property or establish a special 
assessment district and place the costs on the tax roll as special assessments. 
 
Reserve Fund:  The Joint Escrow Account would be separate from the Sewerage System Reserve 
Fund, which is to be set up and maintained by the developer and HOA and described in Sec. 6 
for operation, maintenance, and repair of the system.  However, language in Sec. 6 also provides 
that, in the event that the Township assumes ownership of the system, any amount in this 
Account would be transferred to the Township.  As well, the Joint Escrow would continue to be 
funded as specified in the master deed and condominium documents, and the Township would 
have a right to ensure that property owners meet their contractual obligations, through either (a) 
establishing a special assessment district; or (b) placing liens on the affected properties. 
 



 

The developer, and later the association, will be obligated under the master deed and bylaws of 
the condominium to continually maintain the reserve fund at two years of operating costs.   The 
developer, and later the association, should be assessing as needed to maintain that balance.  It 
is anticipated that the Township, under the master deed and bylaws, will have the right to enforce 
those terms.   It should be noted, however, that, particularly in small condominium projects, it is 
possible that the reserve funds will not be funded or maintained.  We have tried to add  
enforcement provisions to prevent that as best as possible.     
 
Previous Agreement – The Sanctuary 
In 1997, the Township approved a similar arrangement for a private waste treatment facility 
serving The Sanctuary PUD project.1  The Sanctuary is a 30-home development located along 
Grand River on a parcel containing approximately 75 acres.  Similar to Hidden Lakes, the smaller 
lot sizes of this development allowed for retention of a significant open space, while also 
necessitating the community sewer system as individual home sites (site condominiums) are too 
small to accommodate individual septic systems.  The 30 home sites were clustered in an area of 
approximately 15-20 acres.  
 
The specifications of this agreement are similar to those of the draft Hidden Lakes agreement, 
including provision of a $100,000 irrevocable letter of credit payable to the Township for the 
operation/maintenance of the sewer system.  Additionally, the Township has the right to charge 
for expenses, and lien the property if expenses are not paid.  This system’s operations have 
remained the responsibility of The Sanctuary’s HOA since the project was developed.   
 
Copies of the sewer resolution and agreement for The Sanctuary are attached.    
 
Recommendation  
Staff requests the Township Board provide direction on approval or denial of Resolution R-
061024-1, and should the Board opt to consider approval, clarifications regarding the following 
are needed: 
 

• Will the developer remain interested in pursuing this Agreement if it will only be approved 
with the “Hand Back” clause (Sec. 3.(e) and/or the Township being able to opt out of 
system takeover (Sec. 3.(b))?  Inclusion of either of these would necessitate that the 
developer work through an agreement with both the Township and EGLE. 
 

• Shall Sec. 3.(e) be included in the Agreement?  (This is the “Hand Back” clause.) 
 

• Shall Sec. 3.(b) state that Township takeover is mandatory (“shall”) or optional (“may)? 
 

• Shall Sec. 8. language regarding potential changes to the escrow account be included or 
omitted? 

 
1 The law in 1997 mandated Township assumption in the event of a failure, while now the Township has 
an option to accept the responsibility or not. 



{19613-001-00152849.1} 1 
 
4855-5567-1237, v. 2 

 
 

RESOLUTION R-061024-1 
ADA TOWNSHIP 

KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PRIVATE SEWERAGE SYSTEM 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT FACILITIES SERVING THE “HIDDEN LAKES AT ADA” 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT  

 
 

 
PRESENT: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
The following resolution was offered by Member __________ and supported by Member 
__________: 

 
 
WHEREAS: 
 

A. Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company (the “Developer”) 
seeks to develop a parcel of real property located in Ada Township, County of Kent, and 
State of Michigan commonly known as 3201 Egypt Valley Avenue NE, Ada, MI 49301, 
with a Permanent Parcel No. 41-15-05-400-03.  
 

B. The Developer proposes to forgo connecting to a publicly owned sewer system and will 
instead design, construct, install, operate, and maintain a private system for the purpose 
of collecting, conveying, transporting, and treating domestic wastewater (the “Sewerage 
System”). 
 

C. The Developer, and any association of co-owners (the “Association”), will be responsible 
for the design, construction, operation, and maintenance of the Sewerage System; 
provided, however, in the event of certain serious failures by the Developer or 
Association in the operation or maintenance of the Sewerage System, as further outlined 
in a written agreement between the Developer, the Association, and the Township 
attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Agreement’), the Township will assume ownership 
and control of the Sewerage System to remedy the failure.  
 



{19613-001-00152849.1} 2 
 
4855-5567-1237, v. 2 

D. In the event that the Township assumes control of the Sewerage System pursuant to the 
Agreement, the Developer and the Association agree to be responsible for reimbursing 
the Township for all costs, fees, and expenses of any nature incurred by the Township in 
connection with the Sewerage System.       
 

RESOLVED 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. The above Recitals set forth above are affirmed as accurate and are incorporated as if 
fully restated herein. 
 

2. Subject to those changes discussed and approved at the Township Board’s June 10, 2024 
regular meeting, Ada Township hereby approves the Agreement to assume responsibility 
for the Sewerage System in the event of a serious failure by the Association or the 
Developer to operate or maintain the Sewerage System under the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement and this Resolution.      
 

3. The Township Supervisor and Township Clerk are authorized and directed to execute the 
Agreement.  
 

4. This Resolution’s approval is conditioned on the Township’s review and approval of the 
Master Deed and Bylaws for the development prior to issuance of any building permits. 
 

5. All resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent 
of any such conflict, hereby repealed. 
 

6. This Resolution takes effect immediately. 
 

AYES:              

NAYS:              

ABSENT:              

Resolution R-061024-1 was declared adopted 
 
Date:  June 10, 2024 
 
 

      
Jacqueline Smith 
Ada Township Clerk 

 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 



{19613-001-00152849.1} 3 
 
4855-5567-1237, v. 2 

 
I hereby certify the attached is a complete copy of resolution R-061024-1 adopted by the Ada 
Township Board of Trustees at their regular meeting on June 10, 2024. 
 
                   _____________________________ 
        Jacqueline Smith 
        Ada Township Clerk 



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
1 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

 

 

 

 

PRIVATE SEWERAGE SYSTEM  
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
THIS PRIVATE SEWERAGE SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the 

“Agreement”) is entered into effective as of the last date signed by one of the parties below (the 
“Effective Date”) between ADA TOWNSHIP, a Michigan general law township, with its offices 
located at 7330 Thornapple River Drive, PO Box 370, Ada, MI 49301  (the “Township”) and 
HIDDEN LAKES AT ADA, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, whose address is 231 W. 
Fulton, Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503 (the “Developer”), and ADA PRESERVATION TRAIL 
CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, a Michigan nonprofit corporation, with an address of 231 W. 
Fulton, Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503 (the “Association”, the Township, the Developer, and the 
Association are referred to herein as the “Parties”).   

 
RECITALS 

A. The Developer owns certain real property within Ada Township, County of Kent, 
and State of Michigan commonly known as 3201 Egypt Valley Avenue NE, Ada, MI 49301, with 
a Permanent Parcel No. 41-15-05-400-03, and which is legally described as follows:  

 . 
The East 60 acres of the North half of the Southeast quarter of Section 5, Town 7  North, 
Range 10 West 
 
(the “Property”).  
 
B. The Developer seeks to develop the Property with 12 single family homesites and    

submit the Property to the condominium form of ownership under the administration of the 
Association, as the designated association of co-owners.  The use of “Developer” in this 
Agreement means the Developer and its successors and assigns.  The use of “Property Owners” in 
this Agreement means any fee simple owner of the Property, or any portion thereof, including the 
Developer or the co-owner of any condominium unit now existing or hereafter created on the 
Property.       

 
C. The Developer proposes to forgo connecting to the publicly owned sewer system 

and will instead construct, install, operate, and maintain a private system for the purpose of 
collecting, conveying, transporting, and treating domestic wastewater (the “Sewerage System”). 
The Sewerage System will be constructed and operated pursuant to a Wastewater Permit under 
Part 41 of Act 451 of 1994 issued by the State of Michigan, Department of Environment, Great 
Lakes, and Energy (“EGLE”).  The Sewerage System, as used in this Agreement, means all pipes, 



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
2 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

channels, conduits, manholes, treatment works, equipment, facilities, pumping stations, and 
appurtenances, collectively or severally, actually used or intended for the purpose of collecting, 
conveying, transporting, and treating domestic wastes on the Property, but does not include any 
facilities, equipment, or appurtenances upstream of the point of lateral connection to each unit now 
or hereafter constructed on the Property.  

 
D. The Developer and the Association will be responsible for the construction, 

operation, and maintenance of the Sewerage System; provided, however, in the event of certain 
serious failures by the Developer or Association in the operation or maintenance of the Sewerage 
System, as further outlined in this Agreement, the Township will assume ownership and control 
of the Sewerage System to remedy the failure.  

 
E. In the event that the Township assumes control of the Sewerage System pursuant 

to this Agreement, the Developer and Association agree to be responsible for reimbursing the 
Township for all costs, fees, and expenses of any nature incurred by the Township in connection 
with the Sewerage System.       
 

F. The Township has determined, in reliance on the Developer and Association’s 
representations and promises contained in this Agreement, that entering into this Agreement is in 
the best interest of the public health, safety and general welfare of the Township.    
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements, the Parties agree 
as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Construction of the Sewerage System.  The Developer shall design and construct 
the Sewerage System in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, 
ordinances, the requirements and conditions of any permit or approval issued by any governmental 
entity with jurisdiction, and consistent with good modern engineering practices of such nature and 
design as to protect the public health and prevent unlawful pollution.  The Developer shall 
complete construction of the Sewerage System prior to the occupancy of any residence constructed 
on the Property.  The Developer and the Association shall not permit the Sewerage System to 
accept wastewater from land other than the Property, of a character other than domestic 
wastewater, or in a volume other than that consistent with twelve residential homesites.  The 
Developer shall cause the Sewerage System to be dedicated as a general common element under 
the control and administration of the Association.     

 
 2. Maintenance of the Sewerage System.  The Developer and the Association shall at 
all times properly operate, improve, and maintain the Sewerage System and all related facilities 
and control systems in compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
engineering best practices, as they may be amended from time to time, and all of the terms and 
conditions of any permit or order issued by any government authority with jurisdiction.   
 
 
 
 



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
3 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

 3.  Sewerage System Failure.   
 
 (a) Minor Failure.   In the event of a “Minor Failure”, the Township may, but 

is not required, to assume ownership, control, and responsibility for the Sewerage 
System.   Minor Failure means: 1) a violation by the Developer or Association of 
any term or condition of this Agreement not cured within 60 days after receipt of 
written notice from the Township specifying the nature of the violation, provided, 
that if such default cannot be cured in such 60-day period, no default shall have 
occurred if the Developer and/or the Association commences the cure within the 
60-day period and continues to diligently pursue such cure, 2) three or more 
violations by the Developer or Association of any term or condition of this 
Agreement in a one-year period, even if cured, or 3) the Association, or the 
Developer as applicable, becomes insolvent, becomes the subject of a petition in 
bankruptcy that is not dismissed within 60 days, or makes an assignment for the 
benefit of creditors.      

  
 (b) Serious Failure.  In the event of a “Serious Failure”, the Township shall 

assume ownership and control of the Sewerage System.   Serious Failure means a 
material failure by the Association or Developer to maintain or operate the 
Sewerage System that causes, or is likely to cause, a substantial risk to public health 
as determined by EGLE or the Kent County Health Department, or their successor 
entities.    

 
 (c) Township Takeover.   In the event that the Township assumes ownership 

and control of the Sewerage System pursuant to this Section, the Association and 
Developer shall execute any documents or take any other action reasonably 
necessary to memorialize or effectuate the transfer upon request of the Township.  
The Association and Developer shall promptly transfer to the Township all records, 
documents, plans, specifications, and manuals pertaining to the Sewerage System 
upon request.  

 
 (d) Expenses of the Township.  In the event that the Township assumes 

ownership and control of the Sewerage System pursuant to this Section, all 
reasonable costs and expenses of any nature that the Township incurs arising out of 
or related to the Sewerage System are assessable to the Property Owners, including, 
without limitation, the costs of operating, maintaining, improving, enlarging, 
extending, or repairing the Sewerage System including any engineering, 
architectural, legal, accounting, insurance, financial, and other expenses incident to 
the operation and maintenance of the Sewerage System (“System Costs”).  The 
System Costs may be billed to the Property Owners in any manner deemed 
convenient by the Township.   Any System Costs constitute a lien on the Property 
as of the date that the System Costs are incurred, and the lien may be enforced by 
the Township in the manner prescribed by the general laws of the state providing 
for the enforcement of tax liens.  

 



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
4 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

 (e) System Handback. In the event that the Township assumes 
ownership and control of the Sewerage System pursuant to this Section and 
the Minor Failure or Serious Failure, as applicable, that gave rise to the 
Township’s assumption of ownership and control is remediated or resolved in 
the Township’s discretion, the Township may return ownership and control of 
the Sewerage System to the Developer, or if the transitional control date has 
passed to the Association, by providing 120-day advanced written notice of the 
Township’s intention to return ownership and control of the Sewerage System.  
In the event that the Township returns ownership and control of the Sewerage 
System pursuant to this subsection, the Township, Association, and Developer, 
as applicable, shall execute any documents or take any other action reasonably 
necessary to memorialize or effectuate the transfer. 

 
 4. Public Sewer. Notwithstanding any other provision of state law or Township 
ordinance to the contrary, if the Township assumes ownership, control, and operation of the 
Sewerage System pursuant to Section 3, the Township may elect to extend a public sanitary sewer 
main to the Property and mandate connections to the public sewer main  for the Property Owners.  
If the Township elects to mandate a public sewer main connection pursuant to this Section 4, the 
Property Owners petition and consent to the creation of a special assessment district on the 
Property for all costs, fees, and expenses associated with the extension and connection to the public 
sanitary sewer.  
 
 5. Easement.  The Developer and the Association grant to the Township a permanent 
easement to enter upon the Property at reasonable times upon reasonable advance notice to 
observe, inspect, test, or monitor any aspect of the Sewerage System and its related facilities and 
control systems in order to assess compliance with this Agreement, or any other legal requirement 
of the Township.   Further, should the Township assume ownership of the Sewerage System 
pursuant to Section 3, the Association and Developer grant the Township a permanent easement 
to enter upon the Property to construct, operate, repair, maintain, and improve the Sewerage 
System along with taking any other action necessary or convenient, in the discretion of the 
Township, for the purpose of collecting, transporting, or treating domestic wastewater.     
 
 6. Reserve Fund.  The Developer and Association shall establish a Sewerage System 
reserve fund (“Sewerage System Reserve Fund”) separate from any other reserve fund required 
under the Michigan Condominium Act, or the Master Deed or Bylaws of the condominium project 
to be established by the Developer.  The Sewerage System Reserve Fund shall be used solely for 
the costs of operating, maintaining, repairing, and replacing the Sewerage System or operations of 
the Sewerage System.  Prior to the completion of the construction of the Sewerage System, the 
Sewerage System Reserve Fund shall be established in an amount equal to two (2) years of the 
estimated cost of operating, maintaining, repairing, and replacing the Sewerage System as certified 
by a Michigan licensed engineer.  The Developer shall ensure at the time of the “Transitional 
control date”, as that term is used in the Michigan Condominium Act, the Sewerage System 
Reserve Fund is fully funded in compliance with this Agreement.  Should the Township assume 
ownership of the Sewerage System pursuant to Section 3, the Association and Developer, as 
applicable, shall transfer any amounts remaining in the Sewerage System Reserve Fund to the 



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
5 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

Township as a setoff for any sums owed by the Property Owners for the operation and maintenance 
of the Sewerage System pursuant to this Agreement.        
 
 7. Waiver and Indemnity.   
 

 (a)  Waiver.  In light of the fact that the Township is entering into this 
Agreement as an accommodation to the Developer and the Association, and to 
induce the Township to enter into this Agreement, the Developer and Association, 
on behalf of themselves and their successors, assigns, transferees, co-owners, and 
grantees waives and releases the Township for and from any and all claims, 
demands, debts, contracts, expenses, attorney fees, causes of action, lawsuits, 
damages and liabilities, of every kind and nature, whether known or unknown, in 
law or equity, including without limitation, for any personal injuries, property 
damage or death (collectively, "Claims"), that arises from or in any way relates to 
this Agreement or the Sewerage System, provided, that the foregoing waiver shall 
not apply to Claims arising out of the Township's intentional or willful misconduct.    

 
 (b)  Indemnity.  The Association and the Developer shall indemnify, defend, 

hold harmless, and reimburse the Township for, against, and from any and all 
Claims arising from, related to, or in any way involving this Agreement or the 
Sewerage System, provided, that the foregoing indemnity and hold harmless 
obligations shall not apply to Claims arising out of the Township's intentional or 
willful misconduct.    

 
 8. Joint Escrow Account.  In addition to any other requirement of the Developer or 
Association contained in this Agreement, prior to the issuance of any building permits for the 
Property,  the Developer shall establish and fund an interest-bearing joint escrow account in a bank 
mutually designated by the Developer and the Township to be held by the Township and the 
Association in the amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000). The funds shall be 
available upon written demand of the Township to secure any amounts owed to the Township 
pursuant to this Agreement or applicable law for the operation, maintenance, repair, or replacement 
of the Sewerage System, provided, that the Developer may assign this obligation, in whole or in 
part, to the Association pursuant to the condominium project Master Deed and/or Bylaws. Accrued 
interest shall remain in the account. However, not more often than once each calendar year, 
the Developer, the Association, or the Township may provide a bid from a qualified 
contractor to replace the Sewerage System, and the Developer or the Association shall be 
entitled to withdraw from the joint escrow account any amounts in excess of that bid. If such 
bid is higher than the amount held in the joint escrow account, the Association shall 
contribute additional funds so that the amount in the joint escrow account equals the 
contractor's bid. 
 
 9. Representations.  The Developer and the Association represent and warrant that 
they have the authority to enter into this Agreement and make it binding upon the Property.    
 
 10. Recording.  A copy of this Agreement may be recorded by either party with the 
Kent County Register of Deeds records.  



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
6 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

 
 11. Governmental Immunity.  It is understood that in the event that the Township 
assumes ownership of the Sewerage System pursuant to this Agreement, it is a governmental 
function.  The Township retains all rights, privileges and immunities as provided by law, and 
nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed a waiver of governmental immunity as provided by 
law. 
 
 12. Deed Restriction Status.  This Agreement (once effective) shall be deemed to be a 
permanent deed restriction/restrictive covenant that touches and concerns the lands involved, shall 
run with the lands and shall both bind and benefit the parties hereto, as well as their successors, 
assigns, creditors, transferees, and heirs.   
 
 13. Breach, Default and Remedies. In the event of a breach or default of this Agreement 
by the Association or Developer, the Township shall have such remedies as are available pursuant 
to Michigan law or equity. Specific performance is a remedy expressly available to the Township. 
All remedies shall be deemed to be cumulative and not exclusive or preclusive. This Agreement 
may be enforced at law or in equity in the Kent County Circuit Court (or equivalent court) and 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.  Should there be any litigation or legal 
proceeding(s) regarding the interpretation of this Agreement, any breach or enforcement of the 
Agreement, or involving any of the terms, conditions or requirements of this Agreement, and 
should the Township prevail in whole or part, the Developer and Association shall reimburse the 
Township for its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs (incurred both before the litigation, during 
the trial court or comparable proceedings, and through any appeal).  Should there be any litigation 
or legal proceeding(s) brought by the Township regarding the interpretation of this Agreement, 
any breach or enforcement of the Agreement, or involving any of the terms, conditions or 
requirements of this Agreement, and should the Developer and/or Association prevail in whole or 
part, the Township shall reimburse the Developer and/or the Association for their reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs (incurred both before the litigation, during the trial court or comparable 
proceedings, and through any appeal). 
 
 14. Compliance with all applicable Ordinances, Codes and Laws.  Both the 
development of the Property and the construction and use of all dwellings and improvements 
therein must not only be in full compliance with this Agreement but also be in full compliance 
with all Township, State of Michigan, Kent County and federal laws, ordinances, permits and 
regulations.  In addition, the Developer shall apply for and obtain all other approvals and permits 
required by EGLE, the Township, Kent County, the State of Michigan and federal law for the 
development and use of the Property.  Except as expressly provided for herein, the parties 
acknowledge that this Agreement is not, and may not be interpreted as, constituting any type of 
land division, condominium, stormwater, soil erosion, building code or similar permit or approval 
and the Developer remains responsible to apply for and obtain any and all such required additional 
approvals.  
 
 15. Amendment or Change. This Agreement shall not be amended, altered, or changed 
except in a written document signed by all parties.  
 



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
7 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

 16. Severability.  If any term, provision, or clause of this Agreement is determined to 
be unconstitutional or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, that shall not affect any 
other provision or clause of this Agreement and the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
 17. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two counterparts, each of which 
when executed shall constitute an original, but all counterparts together shall constitute but one 
and the same instrument.  
 
 18. Waivers.  A waiver of any right or remedy under this Agreement or as provided by 
law is only effective if given in a writing signed by all parties and shall not be deemed to be waiver 
of any other breach or default. A failure or delay by a party in exercising any right or remedy under 
this Agreement or by law shall not constitute a waiver of that or any other right or remedy 
thereafter.  
 
 19. Entire Agreement; Jointly Drafted.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement and understandings between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  
This Agreement also supersedes all prior negotiations, courses of dealing, other agreements and 
all representations and promises, whether written or oral, relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. This Agreement shall be deemed jointly drafted by all parties.  
 
 20. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, 
there are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement.  
 
 21. Notices.  When a notice is required to be given by this Agreement, the written notice 
shall be either mailed to or hand-delivered to the parties as follows: 
 
 

(a)        To Ada Township: The Ada Township Supervisor 
Ada Township Offices 
7330 Thornapple River Drive 
PO Box 370 
Ada, MI 49301 
 

(b)        To the Association: Ada Preservation Trail Condominium 
Association 
231 W. Fulton 
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503 
Attn: Paulus C. Heule 
 

(c)        To the Developer: Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC, a Michigan limited 
liability company 
231 W. Fulton  
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503 
Attn: Paulus C. Heule 

 



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
8 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

[Signatures on following pages] 

 
 
 
 

  



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
9 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

 
 

ADA TOWNSHIP, a Michigan general 
   law township 
 
 
By ________________________________ 

 
 

And by 

Ross Leisman, 
Its Supervisor 
 
 
_______________________________ 

 
Jacqueline Smith  
Its Clerk 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN )  
) ss. 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 
  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of 
_______________, 202__, by Ross Leisman, Township Supervisor, and also by Jacqueline Smith, 
Township Clerk, of the Township of Ada, both on behalf of the Township. 

     __________________________________________ 
  
Notary Public, __________ County, Michigan 
Acting in __________ County 
My commission expires: ____________________ 

 
 

 

*  *  * 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
10 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

 
       Developer:  

 
HIDDEN LAKES AT ADA, LLC, a Michigan 
limited liability company  
 
 
By  ________________________________ 
       Paulus C. Heule 
       Its Manager 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN )  

) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of 
_______________, 2024, by Paulus C. Heule, as the Manager of Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC, a 
Michigan limited liability company, on behalf of the company.    

     __________________________________________ 
  
Notary Public, __________ County, Michigan 
Acting in __________ County 
My commission expires: ____________________ 

 
 
 
 

 
 

*  *  * 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{12644-004-00148602.5} 
11 

4891-1415-8527, v. 1/ 22139001

      Association:  
 
Ada Preservation Trail Condominium 
Association 
 
 
By ________________________________ 
       Paulus C. Heule 
       Its: Authorized Agent  

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN )  

) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of 
_______________, 2024, by Paulus C. Heule, as the Authorized Agent of Ada Preservation Trail 
Condominium Association, a Michigan nonprofit corporation, on behalf of the corporation.    

     __________________________________________ 
  
Notary Public, __________ County, Michigan 
Acting in __________ County 
My commission expires: ____________________ 

 
 
 
 

 
 
* This instrument is exempt from real property transfer tax pursuant to MCL 207.526(a) and 
MCL 207.505(a).      
 
Drafted by and when recorded, return to:  
 
Blake Conklin 
Bloom Sluggett, PC  
161 Ottawa Ave NW 
Grand Rapids, MI 49503  
 
 
 
22139001 



 

 
 
 

ADA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION  
MINUTES OF THE MEETING AUGUST 17, 2023 

             
       
 
A regular meeting of the Ada Township Planning Commission was held on Thursday, August 17, 
2023, at 5:30 p.m., at the Ada Township Hall Assembly Room, 7330 Thornapple River Dr.,  
Ada, Michigan. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Chair Korth called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
  
Members Present:  Burton, Butterfield, Kluting, Korth, Moyer 
Members Absent:  Easter, Jacobs 
Staff Present:  Buckley, Said, Suchy 
Others Present:  14 
 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Burton, supported by Moyer, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried. 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JULY 20, 2023, REGULAR MEETING 
 
Moved by Moyer, supported by Butterfield, to approve the July 20, 2023, Regular Meeting 
minutes as presented.  Motion carried. 
 
V. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 1.  Request for amendments to an approved Planned Unit Development (PUD), 
          Ken Dixon of Dixon Architecture on behalf of Ufuk Turan, 7510, 7518, 7520 
          and 7524 Fase Street SE, Parcel Nos. 41-15-34-179-014, 015, 016, and 017 
 

Chip Clark with Dixon Architecture, representing Ufuk Turan, stated that he had some updated 
plans to offer as a supplement to the proposed project that Mr. Turan would like to share after 
the Planning Staff report/summary. 
 
Planning Director Said summarized the staff report and explained that the PUD was approved in 
2021 and he went over details of what was previously approved vs. the requested amendments; 
the applicants request proposes to convert the approved single-family home to be constructed at 
7524 Fase Street to a two-family “stacked” dwelling structure with a front-loaded garage. 
 
Said stated that Planning Staff reviewed the proposed amendments and met with Mr. Turan and 
identified concerns about the concept of adding an additional unit: proposed amendment does 
not meet the key zoning and land use aspects of the PUD Standards, the transition of land uses 
within the property line, lot coverage, and that the project would significantly exceed the allowed 

 



Ada Township Planning Commission                                                                                                      
Minutes of the August 17, 2023, Regular Meeting                                                
Page 2 of 7 
 
density of the district.   
 
Said concluded that due to the concerns mentioned, Planning Staff does not support the 
requested PUD amendments and noted that the existing approved PUD represents an effective 
example of a project incorporating a creative design with housing variety and an internal land-
use/density transition that does not burden adjacent properties.  
 
Korth opened the public hearing at 5:43 p.m. 
 
Deb Emery, 7534 Fase Street, shared concern about the amount of fill being used at the site 
(next door to her).  She claims that the overall height of the structure is about 15 ft. higher than 
her house and there does not appear to be a retaining wall.  She is concerned for her property 
and stormwater run-off.  (staff note:  elevation information shows that the elevations for her 
home and the PUD structures are about the same.) 
 
Mark Pflug, 7588 Fase Street, said that this project has morphed over time and he shared concern 
of density and traffic.  He said it would be unwise to grant a second dwelling unit on that one 
property and he encouraged the Planning Commission to not modify the current approved PUD. 
 
Matthew Donald, 7575 Fase Street, said he has the same feeling as neighbor Mark and that the 
PUD should not be modified. 
 
Planning Director Said informed that he received a phone call from Nevin Zolenski, 6151 3 Mile 
Road, voicing his opinion that he is opposed to adding more units and the request should not be 
approved. 
 
There was no other public comment and the public hearing was closed at 5:49 p.m. 
 
Mr. Turan explained about the fill amount/concern and said that the requirements from FEMA 
(Federal Emergency Management Agency) changed in February, 2023, with an updated 
mandatory floodplain requirement of a higher fill amount than it was in 2021 when he was 
approved.  Mr. Turan went over the renderings of his proposed changes and said that the façade, 
footprint, and height are the same and the only visual change is the garage door.  
 
There was discussion among the Commissioners, Planning Staff, and Mr. Turan regarding the 
amount of fill required at the properties (the elevation when PUD was approved vs. elevation 
requirements now), the overall height of the gable/roof, and the possibility of tabling a decision 
to allow the Planning Staff to do further research on the legal perspective and engineering 
perspective with regards to FEMA and elevation issues. 
 
Moved by Moyer, supported by Burton, to postpone action to allow Planning Staff to obtain 
answers to the questions discussed at this meeting.  Motion carried. 

 
 2. Amendments to an approved PVM District Development Plan including 
          amended departures, Oxbow Ada, LLC, 7535 and 7567 Fase Street SE,  
          Parcel Nos. 41-15-34-180-008 and 41-15-34-200-036 
 

Brad Rottschafer with Mosaic Properties and representing Oxbow LLC, shared the history of the 
PVM approval in September 2022 and that currently construction is underway, and said that in 
between time, they refined some architectural changes and improvements.  He explained some 



Ada Township Planning Commission                                                                                                      
Minutes of the August 17, 2023, Regular Meeting                                                
Page 3 of 7 
 
details of the proposed changes (which cause the need to request some size departures) and said 
he is not increasing density, and do not have any significant changes, basically just made some 
improvements. 
 
Said referred to the staff report and went over renderings of the specific modifications proposed; 
further clarifications on units, sizes, and some minor layout modifications of building envelope 
and lot concepts, and the project no longer has a pool proposed but instead a community garden. 
Said stated that it is important to note that a large stormwater management pond is being 
provided on the site and the elevation level approved by FEMA (Federal Emergency Management 
Agency) and EGLE (Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy Water Resources Division). 
 
Said concluded that the proposed updated Oxbow project meets the spirit and intent of all the 
criteria associated with the PVM Overlay District.  It also provides an interconnected street 
network, high-quality public spaces and facades facing streets, and open spaces, and based on 
those criteria, Staff recommends approval of the request including all requested departures as 
noted in the staff report. 
 
Korth opened the public hearing at 6:23 p.m.  
 
Kristen Knaus, 7575 Fase Street, referred to the renderings projected on the overhead screens 
and questioned what some of the little black boxes were. 
 
There was no other public comment and the public hearing was closed at 6:24 p.m. 
 
Mr. Rottschafer addressed the question on the renderings and said that the black boxes in 
question were single-family homes. 
 
There was discussion among the Commissioners, Planning Staff, and Mr. Rottschafer regarding 
the transition of density on the site, went over clarifications/comparisons on proposed changes 
(specifically units 1-5), site elevation, and the completion and maintenance of the walkway to the 
edge of the development area.   
 
Moved by Burton, supported by Moyer, to approve the requested amendments, including all 
requested departures, utilizing the standards and conditions noted below: 
 
1.  The Planning Commission hereby makes the following findings: 

 
a. The proposed development plan, as modified by the conditions of approval listed below, 

requires the additional departures from the standards of the PVM District, including a 
height departure for the multi-family “loft” residential building (Units 72-88), and all 
departures as noted in the attached “Required Departures” tables, which are all hereby 
approved.   
 

b. The approved departures result in a plan that complies with the spirit and intent of the 
PVM District to a greater degree than would be possible without approval of the 
departures. 
 

c. The project is consistent with the purpose and intent of the PVM District. 
 

d. The project will not have a detrimental impact on adjacent property or the surrounding 



Ada Township Planning Commission                                                                                                      
Minutes of the August 17, 2023, Regular Meeting                                                
Page 4 of 7 
 

neighborhood. 
 

e. The project is necessary and appropriate to accommodate a superior design of the 
proposed development. 
 

2. The proposed development plan for a new 88-unit mixed residential development with live-
work units is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions: 

  
a. Prior to the issuance of any building permit, the applicant shall provide funds, in an amount 

to be approved by the Township, for completion of the walkway to the edge of the 
development area.  
 

b. The applicant shall provide lighting plans consistent with applicable requirements and shall 
obtain Township Staff approval prior to the issuance of any building permit. Any exterior 
building-mounted light fixtures shall be full-cutoff to control light emission, or of a low-
intensity non-glare light style, subject to approval by Township Staff prior to issuance of 
a building permit.  There shall be no pole-mounted fixtures on this site. 
 

c. There shall be no food service, storage, sales, or distribution within the development, 
specifically including the commercial spaces designated on the plan. 
 

d. A stormwater permit application shall be submitted, and a permit issued by the Township 
in compliance with the stormwater ordinance, prior to the release of any permits. 
 

e. A floodplain development permit application shall be submitted, and a permit issued by 
the Michigan EGLE and Ada Township, prior to the initiation of any site improvements and 
prior to the release of any permits. 
 

f. Except as modified in accordance with these conditions of approval, the building and site 
improvements shall be completed substantially as shown on the plan set titled “Oxbow”, 
as follows: 
 
1) Site Layout Plan Sheet C-205, dated 07/20/23. 
2) Site Layout Comparison Plan Sheet C-207, dated 07/20/23. 
3) Site Grading Plan Sheet C-300 dated 07/20/23. 
4) Storm Sewer Plan Sheet C-400 dated 07/20/23. 
5) Sanitary Sewer & Watermain Plan Sheet C-401 dated 07/20/23. 
6) Utility Easement Plan C-402 dated 07/20/23. 
7) Details & Specifications C-500 dated  07/20/23. 
8) Landscape Plan Sheet L-201 dated  07/20/23. 
9) Oxbow Architectural Addendum dated 08/17/23. 

 
Motion carried. 
 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - none 
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 1.  Final PUD Plan - Planned Unit Development, 12 single-family residential 



Ada Township Planning Commission                                                                                                      
Minutes of the August 17, 2023, Regular Meeting                                                
Page 5 of 7 
 
                home sites in RP-1/PUD zoning district, Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC,  
                Paul C. Heule, 3201 Egypt Valley Avenue NE, Parcel No. 41-15-05-400-002  
 
Jon Male, Exxel Engineering, and Ed Pynnonen, representing developer Paul Heule, presented  
their request.  Mr. Male said that back in the fall they submitted their Preliminary PUD plans and 
since then they have obtained the necessary approvals and construction plans and is requesting 
review and approval of the Final PUD Plan. 
 
Said summarized the staff report and explained the Final PUD has a few slight modifications from 
the Preliminary approval; reduction in length of interior road with private driveway easement 
extending from cul-de-sac bulb to Lot 6, and a slight realignment of interior road and resulting 
minor changes to sizes and shapes of lots and open space areas.  The applicant indicated that this 
realignment is due to site contours. 
 
Said referred to the Final PUD Standards and stated that Staff believes that the Final Plan submitted 
meets these Standards and that there are no objections to approval of the Final PUD Plan, subject 
to the conditions noted in the staff report, and the addition of a condition that reflects that there 
will need to be an agreement between the Township and the developer/homeowners association 
for the perpetual maintenance of the septic system prior to initiation of site improvements (as 
discussed earlier with applicant/developer). 
 
There was discussion among the Commissioners, Planning Staff, and Mr. Male and Mr. Pynnonen 
regarding stormwater run-off process and maintenance, stormwater permit, items of the master 
deed, a change in the language on condition number 5, and a question was raised about what 
assurance there was that there would be money to maintain the septic system. 
 
Mr. Pynnonen explained the process/language in the maintenance agreement stating they would 
hire a professional company that manages the wastewater treatment system and the 
homeowner’s association funds that.  In the event that the homeowner’s association fails to do 
that, there will be an agreement with the Township that says the Township would have the power 
to go ahead and hire someone to do that and could put liens on the property to pay for those 
services. 
 
Moved by Moyer, supported by Burton, to approve the Final PUD plans subject to the following 
conditions and amendments as mentioned earlier: 
 
1. The approved PUD Plan shall be carried out in substantial conformance with the Hidden 

Lakes at Ada plans and submittals prepared by Exxel Engineering, as follows:   
 

• Letters dated June 29, 2023 and July 20, 2023 
• Site Development Plan – Final PUD dated 7/19/23 
• Cover Sheets dated 6/12/23 
• Ada Preservation Trail (Pvt.) dated 6/12/23 
• Kent County Road Commission Driveway Plan dated 4/11/23 
• Overall Grading Plan, Site Grading Plan (West) and Site Grading Plan, all dated 

6/12/23 
• Culvert/Wall Details dated 6/12/23 
• Landscape Plan and Main Entrance Landscape Plan (no date) 
• Septic Tank & Drainfield Plan dated 6/12/23 
• Forcemain Plan dated 6/12/23 
• Street Name dated 6/12/23 
• Detention Basin Design worksheets dated 6/16/23 



Ada Township Planning Commission                                                                                                      
Minutes of the August 17, 2023, Regular Meeting                                                
Page 6 of 7 
 

• Watershed Map (no date) 
• Pipe Drainage Map and calculations (no date) 
• Culvert Report dated 6/16/23. 

 
2. The proposed development shall consist of a maximum of 12 single-family dwelling units. 

 
3. A Township Private Road Permit application, complying with Kent County Road 

Commission driveway access requirements, shall be submitted and issued, prior the 
recording of the required condominium documents. 
 

4. The submittal of completed condominium documents (Master Deed, Subdivision Plan, and 
Bylaws), to the Planning Department for review and determination that they are 
consideration with the approved PUD Plan and these conditions, prior to their being 
recorded with the Kent County Register of Deeds. 
 

5. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, the applicant shall: 
 

a. Submit a storm water permit application and accompanying construction plans for 
the storm water management system and obtain all required permits including 
from the Planning Department. 

b. Submit plans and obtain all required approvals for soil erosion. 
c. Submit plans and obtain all required approvals for all water supply and sewer 

(septic) system improvements. 
d. Submit and obtain Township approval for a written agreement between the 

Township and the developer/homeowners association for perpetual maintenance 
of the community septic system. 

 
6. There shall be no street lighting on the property.   

 
7. The Construction plans for public water and sewer main extensions shall be subject to 

issuance of required State permits and approval by the Utilities Director, prior to initiation 
of site improvements, and prior to issuance of building permits. 
 

8. A wetland permit shall be obtained from the State of Michigan (EGLE) prior to issuance of 
any building permit. 

 
9. The applicant shall finalize an agreement with the Township for dismissal of the previous 

1972 court order prior to the issuance of any permits for the site. 
 
10. Accessory buildings and any other site improvements other than the proposed homes shall 

be subject to pertinent requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, including for the RP-1 
Zoning District as applicable. 

 
Motion carried. 
 
VIII.   COMMISSION MEMBER / STAFF REPORTS 
 
Township Manager Suchy shared that the Ada Township Parks Director, Mark Fitzpatrick, has 
announced his retirement date of November 15, 2023. 
 
Suchy provided updates:  River Street property acquisition with a donation made to the Township 
and pedestrian crossing improvements.  He will continue to share additional information at 
upcoming meetings. 
 



Ada Township Planning Commission                                                                                                      
Minutes of the August 17, 2023, Regular Meeting                                                
Page 7 of 7 
 
Said mentioned that he would like to introduce an idea to the Planning Commission and ZBA of 
doing an annual retreat.  It would provide opportunities to discuss issues:  training on planning 
and zoning issues, legal issues, and implementation of the Master Plan.  Said will follow-up with 
an email to the PC and ZBA members and work out the framework for making this happen.   
 
Said welcomed new Planning Commissioner, Steve Kluting.  
 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Deb Emery, 7534 Fase Street, said in reference to the elevation on Fase Street, she received a 
post card back in 2010 from the Dam Authority (for Cascade and Ada dams) that said their 
elevation was 636.8 inches, and she was still questioning why so much fill was brought in for the 
new properties next door to her.  
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Moved by Butterfield, supported by Moyer, to adjourn the meeting at 7:12 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
_________________________________   
Jacqueline Smith, Ada Township Clerk    
 
rs:eb 



 MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 DATE:  10/8/97 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Ada Township Board 
  
FROM: Jim Ferro, Planner 
 
RE: The Sanctuary PUD/Site Condominium 
 
Project Overview 
 
Attached is the draft Resolution for approval of the Preliminary PUD Plan for “The Sanctuary,” containing 
conditions of approval as recommended by the Planning Commission. The Resolution is unchanged from 
its previous consideration by the Board.



 
 ADA TOWNSHIP RESOLUTION R- 101397- 2   
 
 
A Resolution to approve a Preliminary Development Plan for The Sanctuary Planned Unit 
Development. 
 
At a Regular Meeting of the Township Board of Ada, Kent County, Michigan, held in said 
Township on Monday, October 13, 1997, at 7:30 p.m., there were: 
 
PRESENT:   Haga, Millhuff, Soderberg, Downey, Nygren, Rhoades  
 
ABSENT:  Baker 
 
The following Resolution was offered by Member Rhoades and supported by Member Nygren: 
 
WHEREAS, Mountain Ridge Development Corp. and D.P. Fox Sanctuary L.L.C. have submitted 
an application for approval of a Planned Unit Development, and request for rezoning of land to 
the Planned Unit Development District, and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development includes 30 detached single-family 
condominium units on approximately 70.93 net acres, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ada Township Planning Commission, after the holding of a public hearing 
regarding the application, has recommended that the Township Board approve the Preliminary 
Development Plan and request for PUD rezoning; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 
 
1. The Preliminary Development Plan, hereinafter referred to as the "The Sanctuary PUD", is 

hereby approved. 
 
2. Approval of the PUD is based on the following findings and conclusions: 
 
 a. The proposed PUD conforms with the policies, goals, guidelines and 

recommendations contained in the Ada Township Master Plan. 
 
 b. The PUD is consistent with and promotes the intent of the Planned Unit 

Development provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 c. The PUD is compatible with surrounding uses of land and the character of the 

surrounding area, through the designation of environmentally-sensitive portions of 
the PUD site as common open space. 

 
 d. The PUD is designed to have minimal adverse effect on the environment, and to 

preserve the natural features of the area. 
 
 e. The PUD will not place demands on public services and facilities in excess of their 

capacity. 
 
 f. The PUD provides safe and efficient provisions for vehicular and pedestrian 

circulation and traffic. 
 
 g. Additional traffic generated by the PUD will not create a substantial detrimental effect 

on neighboring properties or the Township at-large. 
 
 h. The PUD is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the Township. 
 
3. Approval of the PUD is subject to conformance with the following conditions, which are 

deemed necessary to meet the intent and purpose of the PUD provisions of the Zoning 
Ordinance, to protect the public health, safety and welfare, and to comply with the 



Ada Township Resolution R-            
Page 2 
 

standards for approval of PUD's contained in the Zoning Ordinance: 
 

a. The PUD shall consist of a condominium containing 30 single-family condominium units, 
located within building envelopes substantially as shown on the PUD Plan titled "The 
Sanctuary P.U.D.," prepared by Exxel Engineering, dated August 5, 1997. 

 
b. Approximately 55 acres on the plan shall be identified as "Permanent Protected Open 

Space" and shall forever remain open space, subject only to uses approved by the 
Township on the approved Preliminary Development Plan. Further subdivision of open 
space land or its use for other than recreation or conservation purposes, shall be prohibited. 

 
c. Areas designated on the PUD as "Permanent Protected Open Space" shall be set aside by 

the applicant through an irrevocable instrument, approved by the Planning Commission and 
recorded with the Kent County Register of Deeds, that assures that the open space areas 
will be protected in perpetuity from all forms of development, except as shown on the 
approved PUD, and will not be changed to another use without the prior approval of Ada 
Township, according to the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. The instrument of record 
shall indicate the allowable uses of the dedicated open space, and shall require that the 
open space be maintained by the Association of lot owners within the development. Said 
instrument shall be recorded with the recording of the condominium subdivision plan. 

 
d. All dwelling units shall be located within the building envelope areas delineated on the PUD 

Plan. In cases where building envelopes shown on the PUD Plan overlap, there shall be 
maintained a minimum 20-foot separation distance between adjacent dwelling units. 

 
 Development on all condominium units shall be subject to conformance with all other 

requirements of the Zoning Ordinance applicable to development in the Rural Residential 
(RR) District, including, but not limited to, maximum building height and accessory building 
provisions. 

 
e. The Final PUD Plan submittal shall include revisions to the amount and location of guest 

parking spaces, as recommended by the Township Planner. 
 

f. The Final PUD Plan shall provide for an increase in the width of the emergency access drive 
to 18 feet. 

 
g. The Final PUD Plan shall include construction specifications, approved by the Fire Chief and 

the Township Engineer, for a "dry" water main and hydrant, extending from the existing fire 
hydrant in The Preserve to the private road. 

 
h. A private road permit shall be applied for and issued by the Township, prior to construction 

of the private roads. 
 

i. The private roads shall either be completed, or a financial guarantee equal to the cost of 
construction deposited with the Township, prior to issuance of any building permits in the 
condominium. 

 
j. Electrical service, telephone service and other private utilities serving the condominium shall 

be placed underground. 
 

k. A permit to construct the community waste treatment facility shall be issued by the Kent 
County Health Department, and authorization for the community waste treatment facility 



Ada Township Resolution R-            
Page 3 
 

obtained from the Ada Township Board, prior to recording of the condominium subdivision 
plan and master deed, and prior to issuance of any building permits. 

 
l. The condominium subdivision plan and master deed shall be submitted to the Township for 

review for conformance with the PUD plan and zoning standards, prior to its recording with 
the Register of Deeds. 

 
Upon a vote for the adoption of said resolution, the vote was: 
 
AYES: Haga, Millhuff, Downey, Rhoades, Baker  
 
NAYS: Soderberg   
 
The motion was adopted. 
  

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Township Board of the 
Township of Ada, County of Kent, State of Michigan, at a meeting held on October 13, 1997, the original of which is on file 
in my office and available to the public.  Public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in compliance with the 
Open Meetings Act, Act No. 267 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1976, including in the case a of a special or rescheduled 
meeting, notice by posting at least 18 hours prior to the time set for said meeting. 

 
 
Dated: October 13, 1997                                     ___________________________ 
                                                                             Deborah Ensing Millhuff, Township clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



XI B





MEMORANDUM

Date: 6/3/24 

TO:   Ada Township Board 
FROM:   Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: Resolution R-061024-2: Road Closure Request for Ada Criterium Event 

Background: 

I have enclosed a request from the Cosdi Racing Team to bring back the Ada Criterium event on 
Saturday August 31st. The last Ada Criterium event was last held in downtown Ada in 2019.  

The event request includes a map outlining the route of the Criterium event. Staff also confirmed that 
Cosdi Racing would be responsible for traffic control and logistics of site setup on the day of the 
event.    

Staff reviewed the request and reached out to the Ada Businesses Association as well as Baton 
Collective to identify if there would be any conflicting events held on August 31st. They do not currently 
have any events scheduled for that date.  

Representatives from the Cosdi Racing team will attend the board meeting and be available to answer 
any questions the board may have.  

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution R-061024-2 allowing the Ada Criterium Event to proceed 
holding their event on August 31st.  

Requested Motion: 

Motion to Approve Resolution R-061024-2: Road Closure Request to Kent County Road Commission 
for Ada Criterium Event  

XI C



Ada Bike Team, Inc. d/b/a COSDI Racing

2885 N. New Town Dr. NE

Grand Rapids, MI 49525

Ada Township Board

Ada, Michigan 49301

Dear Board Members:

COSDI Racing Team and their directors, as the organizers of the proposed “Ada Criterium”, extend our

sincerest gratitude for your time, feedback, and assistance thus far in the planning process for this event.

As we continue to move forward in planning, we welcome any additional feedback you have that will

help us to create a successful and safe event that is beneficial to the community while seeking to

highlight some of the great things happening in Ada while showcasing and promoting how to make

cycling a part of a healthy lifestyle and community.

This letter seeks to fully inform you of all relevant aspects of this proposed event and requests any

relevant feedback from you necessary for ultimate approval to proceed with holding the event.

About COSDI Racing: Ada Bike Team, Inc. d/b/a COSDI Racing is a domestic nonprofit corporation

registered with the State of Michigan. Ada Bike Team has a mission of education, leadership

development, and promotion of competition in cycling.

About Criterium Bike Races: A criterium bike race is a time race that is anywhere from 20 minutes to 90

minutes depending on the rider's skill level or “category”. These races are held on looped courses that

are typically between one half mile and a mile long. These races are fast paced with racers going

upwards of 30 miles per hour, and given the short loops for the courses they are very spectator friendly

as the racers pass every two to three minutes.



COSDI Racing – Ada Criterium Proposal

Proposed Event:

Date: Saturday August 31st

Schedule:

Start Time Event Length

1:00pm Junior Men and Women 20 Minutes

1:30pm Novice Men’s Race 30 Minutes

2:15pm Women’s Race 45 Minutes

3:15pm Masters (age 40+) Race 45 Minutes

4:15pm Kids Race/Community Race

4:40pm Intermediate Men’s Race 45 Minutes

5:40pm Men’s Race 75 Minutes

Course and Road Closures:



COSDI Racing – Ada Criterium Proposal

The start/finish (see map) line will be located by The Community Church on Thornapple River Dr. The

racers will ride counter clockwise on the course. Heading southwest from the start line, the riders will

make a left on Ada Drive, followed by a left on Hedley Street. The route will follow Headly St and make a

left turn onto Bronson, followed by a left on Teeple Street, and a right turn on Thornapple River Drive

back to the start/finish line.

To ensure participant safety we are requesting approval of the following road closures:

● Thornapple River Drive closed to car traffic from Headley Street to Ada Drive.

● Bronson Street closed off west of Headley Street intersection to Teeple Street.

● Closure of Ada Drive between Thornapple River Drive and Headley Street.

Signage will be placed along the course one week in advance to the date of the event to alert residents.

Road closures will go into effect 15 minutes prior to the first race of the day. Upon completion of the

race, the major closures (i.e. Ada Drive and Headley Street will be prioritized to remove barriers and

allow normal traffic flow to resume.

Coordination with local businesses: We are in the process of thoroughly communicating with and

coordinating with all affected businesses and other entities in the Ada Village area. This communication

includes providing these businesses with a thorough overview of the event, the event traffic plan,

opportunities to get involved with the event, and a mechanism for feedback prior to and after the event

occurs.

We have already formed working relationships with a number of local businesses in and around Ada who

are providing sponsorship funding, in-kind donations, or other event support. These businesses include:

The Center for Oral Surgery & Dental Implants; Ignite Your Event; Greenland Advanced Oral Care; Great

Lakes Outpost; and The Community Church, with additional local sponsors in the works.

Event Safety: This event will be a registered event with USA Cycling, the national governing body of

amateur and professional cycling in the United States. USA Cycling licensed judges will be on-site to

ensure compliance with all rules. As such, this event will be fully insured, sanctioned, and monitored by

USA Cycling. On site event safety will include a fully closed course that will include USA Cycling approval,

traffic routing, barriers and other safety devices, volunteer personnel at every corner, EMS on site, and

any other necessary safety measures. The course safety plan will be fully reviewed with the Ada Village

Fire Chief to ensure completeness.

Participants & Registration: The race participation categories will be events for all ability levels, as

allowed by time constraints. This will include ability and age-group categories recommended by USA

Cycling and their state affiliate, the Michigan Bicycle Racing Association. Registration for the event will

take place through the USA Cycling website. All regular participants will be USA Cycling license holders,

with single-day racing licenses available to the beginner categories.



COSDI Racing – Ada Criterium Proposal

In addition to the regular race fields, there will be a kids race of a lap or less (depending on age/ability)

for any children who wish to participate. This event does not require a USA Cycling license, and on-site

registration will be available.

Promotion of this race will include the websites of USA Cycling and the Michigan Bicycle Racing

Association, through the Michigan Dental Association Foundation to their donors and member practices,

through Excite Your Event and other race partners, and via social media outreach.

Request for Authorization/Approval of Proposed Event: Based on the information included within this

letter, COSDI Racing hereby requests approval to host this event in Ada Village. If approval is

inappropriate at this time, we request the additional information needed for approval.

Sincerely,

COSDI Racing Management & Race Planning Committee



BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 
KENT COUNTY 

1500 Scribner Avenue NW 
Grand Rapids MI 49301 

Telephone 242-6900 FAX  242-6980 

ADA TOWNSHIP RESOLUTION NO. R-061024-2 
“ADA CRITERIUM” 

Used by governmental units in connection with applications to construct, operate, use and/or maintain 
within the right-of-way; or to close as roadway under the jurisdiction of the Kent County Road 
Commission, County of Kent, State of Michigan. 

PRESENT: ____________________________________________________________________________ 
ABSENT: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

BE IT RESOLVED, that: 

The Board of Ada Township, 7330 Thornapple River Drive SE, Ada, MI 49301 represented by its 
Supervisor, Ross Leisman, is hereby authorized to make application to the Kent County Road 
Commission on behalf of the Township of Ada in the County of Kent, State of Michigan for the necessary 
permit(s) to: 

Conduct a "Ada Criterium" upon the roadways in Ada Township on August 31, 2024 from 11:00 a.m. to 
7:00 p.m.  A map of the route is attached.  The following roads will be closed: 

• Bronson Street, Teeple Avenue west to Headley Street
• Headley Street, Bronson Street east to Ada Drive
• Teeple Street, from Bronson Street to Thornapple River Drive
• Thornapple River Drive, from Ada Drive west to Headley Street
• Northwesterly half of Ada Drive (southwest-bound traffic lane), from Headley Street to Thornapple

River Drive.

And, that the Township of Ada, in the County of Kent, State of Michigan, will faithfully fulfill all permit 
requirements.  

The above resolution was offered by Member ________ and supported by Member _________. 

YEA:  ___ 
NO:    ___ 
ABSENT: ___ 

Resolution R-061024-2 

Date:  June 10, 2024 

I, HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the ADA TOWNSHIP 
BOARD of the TOWNSHIP OF ADA at a regular meeting held on Monday, June 10, 2024. 

Signed _________________________________ 
      Jacqueline Smith 
  Ada Township Clerk 



MEMORANDUM

Date: 6/3/24 

TO:   Ada Township Board 
FROM:   Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: Grand River Drive Trail Maintenance Engineering Proposal – Moore + Bruggink 

Background: 

The Township is reviewing the condition of its trail system on an annual basis to identify what sections 
need maintenance to ensure our system remains in good shape for residents and trail users.  

Staff completed a walk-thru inspection of Grand River Drive – the oldest trail section in the system on 
Tuesday May 28th.    

Following the inspection, I requested a proposal from Steve Groenenboom of Moore + Bruggink which 
has been attached. Also enclosed is a cost estimate detail for the $520,000 project.   

The Township will be billed for the actual costs, the amounts included by Mr. Groenenboom are 
estimates of the time required to complete these tasks. Included in the proposal are the following 
items:  

• Design Engineering - $15,000.00
o Preparation of Plans, Specifications, and Bidding Documents

• Construction Engineering, Inspection, Testing, and Staking - $30,000.00

Funds have been budgeted in the trail fund to cover the costs of this maintenance project. Once the 
project is complete the Township would inspect the next section of Grand River Drive and look at 
completing that the following year – but this would be reviewed and considered by the Board in 2025. 

Recommendation: 

Staff would recommend approval the Moore + Bruggink engineering proposal for a cost not to exceed 
$45,000. Once approved Moore + Bruggink will follow the schedule included in their proposal to have 
the work completed by October 15, 2024.  

Requested Motion: Motion to Approve Proposal from Moore+Bruggink for Grand River Drive Trail 
Maintenance Engineering for an Amount not to Exceed $45,000.00. 

XI D



 

2020 Monroe Avenue NW | Grand Rapids, MI 49505-6298 
T [616] 363 9801 | F [616] 363 2480 | W mbce.com 

May 31, 2024 

Re: Grand River Drive Trail 
 Fulton Street to Carl Drive 
 Project No. 240102.01 

Mr. Julius Suchy 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Ada, Michigan 49301 

Dear Mr. Suchy: 

This letter follows up on our walk-through inspection of the Grand River Drive Trail from 
Fulton Street to Carl Drive on Tuesday, May 28. 

This section of trail is 9,000 feet long and was constructed in 2007. It has aged well, but 
is showing some transverse and longitudinal cracking. There are two sections of 
boardwalk that were repaired last year, but the paint on the handrail is chipping and needs 
to be repainted or replaced. The covered bridge is in good shape, but there are some gaps 
in the floor boards that need to be corrected and guard railing should be added at each 
end of the bridge. 

The trail should be cold-milled and repaved with either one or two layers of asphalt. The 
larger cracks and joints will be fortified with reinforcement to minimize reflective cracking 
through the new asphalt. New protective guard rail/fence will be placed at each end of the 
covered bridge. There will also be minor drainage improvements to clean out and/or 
replace several smaller catch basins along the path near Holiday Farms. 

We estimate the cost of these repairs will be $520,000. Additional detail is contained on 
the attached spreadsheet. 

We estimate our fees for the design and construction engineering for this project as 
follows: 

1. Design Engineering, including preparation of plans, specifications, and bidding 
documents. 

Cost ........................................................................................ $15,000 

2. Construction Engineering, Inspection, Testing, and Staking – We will provide 
construction inspection, materials testing, and survey staking during the 
anticipated five-week. 

Cost ........................................................................................ $30,000 



Mr. Julius Suchy 
May 31, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

P:\240102.01 Ada Township Engineering 2024\ENGINEERING\CORRESPONDENCE\LETTERS\Grand River Drive Trail Proposal.docx 

The total cost for our services is $45,000. We anticipate the following schedule: 

Township Board Approval to Proceed June 10, 2024 
Finalize Design and Bidding Documents July 5, 2024 
Advertise for Bids July 8, 2024 
Receive Bids August 1, 2024 
Contract Award August 12, 2024 
Start Trail Construction September 3, 2024 
Trail Construction Complete October 15, 2024 

Please call if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Steven C. Groenenboom, P.E. 
Township Engineer 



Grand River Drive Trail Repair/Repave
Preliminary Engineering Estimate

ITEM ESTIMATED
NO. PROPOSAL ITEM UNIT QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT

1 Mobilization Lsum 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00
3 Cold Mill HMA Syd 8,553 $3.00 $25,659.00
4 Remove and Replace Curb Stop Box Ea 4 $500.00 $2,000.00
4 Repair Transverse Joints Lft 1,400 $8.00 $11,200.00
5 HMA, 13A Ton 400 $170.00 $68,000.00
6 HMA, 36A Ton 750 $180.00 $135,000.00
7 Turf Establishment Lft 8,553 $5.00 $42,765.00
8 Hand Railing Repairs Lft 400 $50.00 $20,000.00
9 Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 6 inch Sft 500 $10.00 $5,000.00
10 Gravel – MDOT 22A Cyd 100 $20.00 $2,000.00
11 Trail Grading Lft 9,000 $3.00 $27,000.00
12 Sand – MDOT Class II Cyd 100 $40.00 $4,000.00
13 Concrete Gutter Pan at Retaining Wall Lft 300 $35.00 $10,500.00
13 Guard Rail/Fence at Covered Bridge Lsum 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
14 Maintaining Traffic Lsum 1 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
15 Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop Ea 10 $200.00 $2,000.00
16 Silt Fence Lft 2,000 $4.00 $8,000.00
17 Mulch Blanket Syd 2,000 $4.00 $8,000.00

TOTAL ALL ITEMS $431,124.00

Design/Construction Engineering (10%) $45,000.00
Contingency Allowance (10%) $43,876.00

Total Project Estimate $520,000.00

Ada Township Page 1 of 1 May 2024



MEMORANDUM

Date: 6/3/24 

TO:   Ada Township Board 
FROM:   Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: Hall Street/Fernridge Lift Station & Force Main Engineering Proposal – Moore+Bruggink 

Background: 

The Township Board approved an engineering proposal from Moore+Bruggink at its July 11, 2022 
meeting for an amount not to exceed $42,000.00. This proposal was specifically related to the Hall 
Street/Fernridge lift station design + construction engineering.  

As Moore+Bruggink began work on this project it was noted that the Hall Street force main had 
additional breaks and following review and consultation with F&V Operations & Resource 
Management, they recommended including the force main as part of the potential capital project. 

This item was brought to the Buildings, Grounds, & Utility Committee multiple times, which ultimately 
led to creation of the report that is enclosed “Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study Report” to provide the 
BGU committee members a better understanding of the issue and the options available to the 
Township. Out of this study the BGU committee asked Mr. Groenenboom to evaluate net present 
value of the various options available to try and identify what option provided the best value – this 
memo is also enclosed.  

The BGU Committee is recommending replacement of the Hall Street/Fernridge Lift station and 
replacement of the Hall Street force main. 

Based on this new recommendation Mr. Groenenboom has provided an updated proposal for 
engineering services which includes both the Hall Street/Fernridge lift station improvements and the 
Hall Street force main replacement project.  

The Township will be billed for the actual costs, the amounts included by Mr. Groenenboom are 
estimates of the time required to complete these tasks. Included in the proposal are the following 
items:  

• Feasibility Study Phase - $20,000.00
• Soil Borings - $6,000.00
• Topographical Survey & Base Mapping - $15,000.00
• Force Main Design - $3,000.00
• Mechanical/Electrical design - $27,000.00
• Construction Engineering, Inspection, Testing, and Staking - $90,000.00

Total Cost = $161,000.00 (Net Increase of $119,000) from June 28, 2022 proposal. 

This project was discussed and included in the FY 2024-2025 approved budget.  

XI E



Recommendation: 

Staff would recommend approval of the Moore+Bruggink engineering proposal for a cost not to 
exceed $161,000. This project is an important infrastructure improvement and has been thoroughly 
reviewed to identify if other options are available.  

Approval of this proposal would end the original engineering proposal approved at the July 11, 2022 
board meeting.  

Attachments: 
• May 30, 2024 Proposal from Moore+Bruggink for Design & Construction Engineering
• Original June 28, 2022 Design & Construction Engineering Proposal
• Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Survey Report
• Hall Street Lift Station Improvements Net Present Value Review

Requested Motion: Motion to Approve Proposal from Moore+Bruggink for Hall Street/Fernridge Lift 
Station and Force Main Design & Construction Engineering for an Amount not to Exceed 
$161,000.00. 



2020 Monroe Avenue NW | Grand Rapids, MI 49505‐6298 
T [616] 363 9801 | F [616] 363 2480 | W mbce.com 

May 30, 2024 

Re: Fernridge/Hall Street Lift Station 
and Force Main 
Project No. 220195.01 

Mr. Julius Suchy 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Ada, Michigan 49301 

Dear Mr. Suchy: 

At the last Building, Grounds, and Utility Committee meeting, we reviewed the final report 
that presented various repair options for the Hall Street and Fernridge Drive lift station and 
force main. A copy of that report is attached. The committee concurred with our 
recommendation to proceed with Alternative E, which includes renovating the lift station 
and replacing the force main. 

We estimate the following design and construction engineering fees for this project. 

1. Feasibility Study Phase – This work includes our investigation and analysis of
various repair and routing options as discussed in the attached report.

Cost ................................................................................................ $20,000 

2. Soil Borings – Materials Testing Consultants will obtain five soil borings along the
route of the force main in Hall Street and Paradise Lake.

Cost .................................................................................................. $6,000 

3. Topographical Survey and Base Mapping – This includes work to survey and map
the area around the lift station as well as roughly 2,200 feet along the force main
route.

Cost .......................................................................................... $15,000 

4. Force Main Design – We will prepare plan and profile views and details of the new
2,700-foot force main.

Cost ............................................................................................ $3,000 

5. Mechanical/Electrical Design – We will prepare plans, details, and specification
documents for the lift station renovation, including new valves, fittings, piping, and
control panels. The top sections of the wet well will be removed and replaced. New
landscaping will also be incorporated into the bid documents.

Cost .......................................................................................... $27,000 



Mr. Julius Suchy 
May 30, 2024 
Page 2 

P:\220195.01 Hall Street Lift Station Improvements\ENGINEERING\CORRESPONDENCE\LETTERS\Proposal Letter for Lift Station and 
Forcemain Improvements.docx 

6. Construction Engineering, Inspection, Testing, and Staking – We will provide
as-needed inspection during the lift station renovations and full-time construction
inspection, materials testing, and survey staking during the forcemain and roadway
construction.

Cost .......................................................................................... $90,000 

The total cost for all phases (1-6) is $161,000, which represents roughly 12 percent of the 
estimated $1.4 million project cost. The Township Board previously authorized $42,000 in 
engineering fees (see attached letter of June 28, 2022) for the lift station 
design/construction engineering portion of this project, so this is a net increase of 
$119,000 to that contract. 

I will plan on attending the next Township Board meeting to review this information. 

Please give me a call if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Steven C. Groenenboom, P.E. 
Township Engineer 

Attachments 



 

2020 Monroe Avenue NW | Grand Rapids, MI 49505-6298 

T [616] 363 9801 | F [616] 363 2480 | W mbce.com 

June 28, 2022 

Proposal – Hall Street Lift Station 
Improvements 

Mr. Julius Suchy 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Ada, Michigan 49301 

Dear Mr. Suchy: 

This letter follows up on various discussions that we have had with Steve Ryan and Paul 
Harig regarding the Hall Street/Fernridge lift station improvements.  

In preparing this proposal, I met with Paul Harig at the lift station site to review condition 
of assets and discuss the scope of necessary improvements. While on site, we determined 
that the following improvements should be made to the lift station to improve reliability and 
ease of maintenance: 

1. Scope of Lift Station Improvements: 

a. Remove existing controls from wet well and install new control panel above grade. 
Level control instrumentation will also be replaced.  

i. Will require removing the small tree on site.  

b. Replace valves, and fittings as needed, within drywell.  

c. Paint drywell and piping.  

d. Replace cathodic protection anode bags.  

e. Remove the wet well reducing sections, and bring full 6 ft diameter to grade with 
flat top and access hatch to improve access for cleaning out wet well.  

i. This item, and the anode bag replacement, will require removing most of the 
site landscaping.  

f. Add small retaining wall near wet well, and restore landscaping.  

g. Repair rusting areas on existing electrical enclosure.  

i. Cost/benefit of replacing the enclosure vs. repair will be explored.  



Mr. Julius Suchy 
June 28, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

h. The preliminary construction costs estimate also includes an allowance for 
sprinkler repair, and costs for lining the wet well. The necessity of these items will 
be explored during the design process.  

i. The lift station pumps were replaced in 2018 and will be reused.  

j. The standby generator and ATS will be reused.  

2. Timeline: 

a. Design kickoff meeting: Mid July 

b. 90% design documents for owner review: October 14, 2022 

c. 100% design documents with technical specifications, Part 41 permit application, 
and on the table for contractor bids: November 4, 2022. 

d. Contractor Bids Due: December 2, 2022 

e. Construction: April through July of 2023 

f. Moore & Bruggink will make every effort to keep to the timeline above, but please 
be advised that many equipment vendors are taking longer to get detailed 
information to us, and equipment lead times are much longer than in past years, 
so the timeline may need to be adjusted. M&B will communicate any potential 
timeline issues as they arise.  

3.  Fees 

M&B Engineering Services $25,381 

Miscellaneous (mileage, printing, etc.) $339 

Subconsultant Engineering Services  $16,280 

Estimated Project Cost: $42,000.00 

For your reference, we have included a preliminary estimate of construction costs and our 
cost breakdown for engineering services on this project. 

We look forward to being of service to you on this project. If you have any questions or 
concerns, please let me know. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jacob Bruggink 
Project Engineer 

Attachment 



MOORE+BRUGGINK, INC.

PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

PROJECT: Ada Township - Hall Street Lift Station

LOCATION: Ada Township, Michigan

ITEM ESTIMATED

NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL COST

General Project Items

1 Mobilization (Max. 10%) 1 Lsum $27,221.60 $27,221.60

2 Bypass Pumping 1 Lsum $20,000.00 $20,000.00

Subtotal $47,221.60

Site Items

3 Site Removals (Landscaping & Trees) 1 Lsum $3,500.00 $3,500.00

4 Retaining Wall 1 Lsum $700.00 $700.00

5 Landscaping Restoration 1 Lsum $12,000.00 $12,000.00

6 Concrete Removals (pad & sidewalk) 30 Syd $10.00 $300.00

7 Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Silt Bag 2 Ea $150.00 $300.00

8 Subbase Class CIP 18 Cyd $12.00 $216.00

9 Aggregate Base, 8 inch, 21AA Modified 50 Syd $10.00 $500.00

10 HMA Surface, Rem 50 Syd $3.00 $150.00

11 HMA Hand Patching 10 Ton $300.00 $3,000.00

12 Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 125 Sft $8.00 $1,000.00

13 CIP Concrete (concrete & maint. pads) 8 Cyd $675.00 $5,400.00

14 Traffic Control, Max. 2% 1 Lsum $5,000.00 $5,000.00

15 Turf Establishment 200 Syd $4.00 $800.00

16 SCADA Relocation & Integration 1 Lsum $17,200.00 $17,200.00

17 Electrical - Demolition 1 Lsum $3,600.00 $3,600.00

18 Electrical - Controls 1 Lsum $70,000.00 $70,000.00

19 Electrical - Remove/Relocate Electrical Panel Enclosure 1 Lsum $1,200.00 $1,200.00

20 Electrical - Electrcal Panel Enclosure Repair 1 Lsum $4,500.00 $4,500.00

21 Cathodic Protection 1 Lsum $9,000.00 $9,000.00

22 Sprinkler Repair Allowance, Max. $2,000 2,000 Lsum $1.00 $2,000.00

23 Site Conduit 100 Lft $12.50 $1,250.00

Subtotal $141,616.00

Drywell Interior Items

24 Drywell mechanical demo 1 Lsum $15,000.00 $15,000.00

25 Sump pump replacement 1 Es $2,500.00 $2,500.00

26 DI piping, Flanged, 4 inch 4 Lft $150.00 $600.00

27 DI piping, Flanged, 6 inch 4 Lft $250.00 $1,000.00

28 4 inch Iso-ring w/ 0 to 150 ft H2O p. gauges 2 Ea $650.00 $1,300.00

29 6 inch Iso-ring w/ -30 to 30 ft H2O p. gauges 2 Ea $950.00 $1,900.00

30 Check Valve, Flanged, 4 inch 2 Ea $1,000.00 $2,000.00

31 Gate Valve, Flanged, 4 inch 2 Ea $1,000.00 $2,000.00

32 Gate Valve, Flanged, 6 inch 2 Ea $1,200.00 $2,400.00

33 Reducer, Flanged, 6 inch x 4 inch 2 Ea $800.00 $1,600.00

34 DI 45° Elbow, Flanged, 4 inch 2 Ea $650.00 $1,300.00

35 DI Side Outlet 90° Elbow, Flanged, 6 inch 1 Ea $1,000.00 $1,000.00

36 Piping Painting 1 Lsum $5,000.00 $5,000.00

37 Drywell & Chimney Painting 1 Lsum $20,000.00 $20,000.00

Subtotal $57,600.00

Wetwell Items

38 Dewatering 1 Lsum $4,200.00 $4,200.00

39 Manhole Section, 6 ft diameter 1 Ea $5,000.00 $5,000.00

40 Manhole Flat-top, 6 ft diameter w/ 48"x48" embedded hatch 1 Ea $12,000.00 $12,000.00

41 Float Switch 2 Ea $250.00 $650.00

42 Heavy Duty Closed Mesh Double Eye Cable Support Grip 3 Ea $50.00 $150.00

43 2" Link-Seal & Grout 2 Ea $200.00 $400.00

44 Radar Level Sensor 1 Ea $2,500.00 $2,500.00

45 Stainless Steel Float & Instrument Hook 1 Ea $500.00 $600.00

46 Lining wetwell 1 Lsum $27,500.00 $27,500.00

Subtotal $53,000.00

CONSTRUCTION ITEMS SUBTOTAL $300,000.00

CONTINGENCY (19.3%) $58,000.00

DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING $42,000.00

PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION COSTS ESTIMATE $400,000.00

SCOPE: Improvements to controls, piping, and site. 

6/28/2022 Page 1 of 1



Prepared By

Moore Bruggink

Grand Rapids MI

June 2022

Project Project II Project CAD GIS Chief 1-Man Survey Chief

Manager Engineer II Engineer I Tech Professional Surveyor Survey Crew CAD Inspector Inspector II Clerical Total

Hannon Bruggink (as needed) Knapp

1 Orientation and Project Kickoff 2 10 2 14

2 Kickoff Meeting & Site Visit with Electrical Engineer 3 3

3 Topo & Utility Survey 1 8 1 10

4 Base dwg 8 1 9

Orientation & Base Plans Hours: 2 14 0 0 0 0 8 8 0 0 4 36

Project Kickoff & Base Dwg Subtotal: $3,594.00

5 Basis of Design, Hydraulic Calculations 1 8 9

6 Drywell Piping layout 8 8

7 60% Design drawings 24 24

8 Construction Costs Estimate 1 10 11

9 90% Project Drawings 16 16

10 90% Project Specifications 16 6 22

11 Final Estimates 1 6 7

12 Engineering Peer Review 4 4

13 Final Revisions to Plans & Specs 8 8

13 Part 41 Permit Application 1 6 7

14 Permitting Coordination with EGLE, Letters, etc. 1 6 4 11

Design Hours: 9 108 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 127

Design & Permitting Subtotal: $14,036.00

15 Construction Inspection & Density Testing 1 16 17

16 Progress Meetings & Minutes (5 anticipated) 12.5 5 18

17 Shop Drawing review 12 12

18 Pay Applications Review, Budget Letters 8

19 Punch List & Site Visits (2) 1 6

20 O&M Review 6

21 Final Pay App & Budget Letter, Project Closeout 1 6

Construction Hours: 2 50.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 16 5 46.5

Construction Subtotal: $7,750.50

M&B Labor Cost $25,381

Electrical Subconsultant Design Phase + 10% $11,990

Electrical Subconsultant Construction Phase + 10% $4,290

Expenses (mileage & printing) $339

Total Not To Exceed Amount $42,000

Hall Street Lift Station Improvements - Manhour Estimate

 



  

Ada Township 

Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

December 27, 2023 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

P:\220195.01 Hall Street Lift Station Improvements\ENGINEERING\CORRESPONDENCE\REPORTS\Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 
Report\Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study Report_12.27.2023.docx 

 Page i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Table of Contents .............................................................................................................................. i 
List of Tables ..................................................................................................................................... i 
List of Figures .................................................................................................................................... i 
List of Appendices ............................................................................................................................ ii 
1.0 Executive Summary .............................................................................................................. 3 

1.1 Alternatives For Consideration ......................................................................................... 3 

1.1.1 Alternative A: Do Nothing ............................................................................................. 3 

1.1.2 Alternative B: Extend Gravity Sewer from Cascade Road & Eliminate  
 Hall Street Lift Station .................................................................................................. 3 

1.1.3 Alternative C: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station and Pump to Balsam Hill Sewer ....... 4 

1.1.4 Alternative D: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station and Line Force Main ......................... 4 

1.1.5 Alternative E: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station and Replace Force Main ................... 4 

1.2 Recommendation: Improve Hall Street Lift Station and Replace Force Main ................. 4 

2.0 Sewer System Background Information ............................................................................... 5 

2.1 The Need for Sanitary Sewer Study ................................................................................ 5 

2.2 Hall Street Lift Station & Influent Sanitary Sewer Information ......................................... 5 

2.3 Cascade Lift Station & Influent Sanitary Sewer Information ............................................ 6 

3.0 Alternatives Analysis............................................................................................................. 7 

3.1 Alternative A: Do Nothing ................................................................................................. 7 

3.1.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis ...................................................................... 7 

3.1.2 Capital Costs ................................................................................................................ 7 

3.1.3 O&M Costs ................................................................................................................... 7 

3.2 Alternative B: Extend Gravity Sewer from Cascade Road & Eliminate  
 Hall Street Lift Station ...................................................................................................... 7 

3.2.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis ...................................................................... 8 

3.2.2 Capital Costs ................................................................................................................ 9 

3.2.3 O&M Costs ................................................................................................................. 10 

3.3 Alternative C: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station and Pump to Balsam Hill Sewer ......... 10 

3.3.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis .................................................................... 11 

3.3.2 Capital Costs .............................................................................................................. 11 

3.3.3 O&M Costs ................................................................................................................. 11 

3.4 Alternative D: Renovate Hall Street Lift Staton & Line Force Main................................ 12 

3.4.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis .................................................................... 13 

3.4.2 Capital Costs .............................................................................................................. 13 

3.4.3 O&M Costs ................................................................................................................. 13 

3.5 Alternative E: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station & Replace Force Main ........................ 14 

3.5.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis .................................................................... 14 

3.5.2 Capital Costs .............................................................................................................. 14 

3.5.3 O&M Costs ................................................................................................................. 15 

4.0 Recommended Alternative ................................................................................................. 16 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 1 – Hall Street Lift Station Information ................................................................................... 6 

Table 2 – Cascade Lift Station Information ...................................................................................... 6 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 1 –Existing Sanitary Sewer System Near Hall & Cascade ................................................... 5 

Figure 2 –Alternative B Gravity Sewer Extension Routing .............................................................. 8 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

P:\220195.01 Hall Street Lift Station Improvements\ENGINEERING\CORRESPONDENCE\REPORTS\Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 
Report\Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study Report_12.27.2023.docx 

 Page ii 

Figure 3 –Alternative C Hall Street Lift Station Force Main Routing .............................................. 10 

Figure 4 –Existing Hall Street Force Main Routing ........................................................................ 12 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES 

Appendix A – Gravity Sewer Extension Layout 
Appendix B – Force Main to Balsam Hill Layout 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

The Hall Street lift station is located at the intersection of Fernridge Drive and Hall Street.  It receives 
sewage from roughly 80 homes that are along Hall Street and the southern portion of the Paradise 
Lake sub-division. It also receives flow from 80 condominiums on Bridge Crest Drive.    

The lift station pumps the sewage roughly one-half mile through a 6” diameter force main that runs 
east under Hall Street and then turns and goes north under Paradise Lake Drive where it discharges 
into a gravity sewer that flows northerly towards Ada Drive.  This force main has had a couple of 
recent breaks resulting in sewage overflows.  

The Hall Street Lift Station was constructed in 1975 and needs improvements due to the age of the 
equipment. These improvements include new controls, new piping within the dry well, new bypass 
connection piping, wet well modifications, wet well and bypass chamber lining, electrical upgrades, 
and other related items. 

There is a lift station at the Cascade/Spaulding/Hall Street intersection that was constructed in 
1987. Given the proximity of this lift station to the Hall Street lift station, it makes sense to evaluate 
if the flows into the Hall Street lift station can be diverted into the Cascade/Spaulding/Hall lift station.    

A map of the sanitary sewer system in the Cascade/Spaulding/Hall Street/Paradise Lake 
neighborhood is shown on Figure 1.  

The following is a summary of alternatives that have been considered. 

1.1 Alternatives For Consideration 

1.1.1 Alternative A: Do Nothing 

If nothing is done to address the deterioration of the Hall Street Lift Station and 
force main there will be additional breaks in the force main with associated 
emergency responses and related costs. EGLE will also mandate that the situation 
be remedied through a Violation Notice and Authoritative Consent Order process. 
This alternative is not recommended.   

1.1.2 Alternative B: Extend Gravity Sewer from Cascade Road & Eliminate Hall 
Street Lift Station 

This alternative is shown on Figure 2 of this report.  With this alternative, sanitary 
sewer would be extended from the Cascade/Spauling lift station to intercept the 
flows into the Hall Street lift station.  The Hall Street lift station could then be 
removed.  The new gravity sewer would need extend past the Hall Street lift station 
due to the depth of the sewer near the Hall Street lift station. 

The proposed sewer would be approximately 1,950 feet long at a depth up to 
24 feet deep and would require crossing Cascade Road, which would increase 
construction difficulty and costs. It would also increase flows to the Cascade Lift 
Station, so additional improvements would need to be made to the Cascade Lift 
Station to increase the pumping capacity. The estimated cost for this option is 
$2,300,000. 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

1.1.3 Alternative C: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station and Pump to Balsam Hill 
Sewer 

This alternative is shown on Figure 3 of this report. With this alternative, the Hall 
Street Lift Station would be renovated and a new force main would be constructed 
that would pump into the gravity sewer at Balsam Hill. This sewer flows into the 
Cascade Lift Station, so additional improvements would also be required to 
increase the pumping capacity of the Cascade Lift Station. 

The proposed force main would be shorter and would discharge to a lower 
elevation, so new pumps would also be required at the Hall Street Lift Station. The 
estimated cost for this alternative is $1,425,000. 

1.1.4 Alternative D: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station and Line Force Main 

This alternative is shown on Figure 4. With this alternative, the Hall Street Lift 
Station would be renovated and the existing force main in the Hall Street and 
Paradise Lake Drive right-of-way would be lined using a cured-in-place-pipe 
(CIPP) liner. The estimated cost of this alternative is $1,250,000. 

1.1.5 Alternative E: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station and Replace Force Main 

This alternative would be similar to Alternative D, and would include renovating the 
Hall Street Lift Station, but the force main would be replaced with a new 
directionally bored HDPE pipe. This new force main would have benefits for 
system reliability, and the installation would also have less impact to the sanitary 
sewer operations, traffic, and residences since the majority of the HDPE force main 
could be installed while the existing force main is in use and fewer access pits 
would be needed, as compared to CIPP lining. The estimated cost of this 
alternative is $1,400,000. 

1.2 Recommendation: Improve Hall Street Lift Station and Replace Force 
Main 

We recommend the Township proceed with Alternative E. While this is not the least 
expensive option, it is preferred over alternative D because it will have less impact to 
residences, roadways, and will have a much longer life than lining the existing force main. 
It is further recommended that the Hall Street Improvements and force main replacement 
be done as a single project to minimize project costs and interruptions to the lift station 
operation. 

 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

2.0 SEWER SYSTEM BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2.1 The Need for Sanitary Sewer Study 

The Hall Street Lift Station (HSLS) is scheduled for improvements this coming year. The 
force main of the lift station has experienced several breaks in recent years. In response 
to this, Ada Township has requested that alternatives be investigated that could minimize 
project costs.   

Figure 1 –Existing Sanitary Sewer System Near Hall & Cascade 

2.2 Hall Street Lift Station & Influent Sanitary Sewer Information 

The Hall Street Lift Station is located at 5465 Hall Street, on the northeast corner of the 
Fernridge Drive and Hall Street intersection, and was constructed in 1975. The influent 
sanitary sewer in the Hall Street ROW between Paradise Lake Drive and Fernridge Drive, 
and within the Paradise Lake ROW between Hall Street and Stonybrook Court, was 
installed in 1975 with the Hall Street Lift Station. 

The lift station has a wet well/dry well configuration, in which the sanitary sewer flow into a 
wet well and the pumps and control valving are located in an adjacent dry well. This type 
of configuration used to be very common, but is becoming less common for new 
installations due to concerns related to confined space entry and the potential for the dry 
well to flood. 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

A standby generator, automatic transfer switch (ATS), power panel cabinet, and passive 
cathodic protection system were added in 2008. A SCADA system and enclosure were 
added in 2014. The pumps were replaced in 2018. All other equipment is original. The force 
main is 6-inch diameter ductile-iron pipe, and has broken several times in recent years. 
Each force main failure appeared to be due to corrosion acting on the outside of the pipe. 
A summary of the lift station information is shown in the table below. 

Table 1 – Hall Street Lift Station Information 

Hall Street Lift Station 
Year of Original Installation 1975 
Configuration wet well/dry well 
Required Firm Pumping Capacity 250 gpm 
Current Firm Pumping Capacity 280 gpm 
Current Pumps Install Year 2018 
Current Pumps Power 15 hp 
Force Main Diameter & Length 6" Ø & 2,575 ft 
Bypass Connection 6" Ø 
Standby Generator Size, Install Year 480 v 60 kW, 2009 

Lowest Influent Sewer Invert Elevation 739' 
  

2.3 Cascade Lift Station & Influent Sanitary Sewer Information 

The Cascade Lift Station is located at 5200 Cascade Road, on the southeast corner of the 
Cascade Road and Spaulding Avenue intersection, and was constructed in 1987. The 
influent sanitary sewer within the Spaulding Avenue ROW were installed with the Cascade 
Lift Station in 1987. The influent sanitary sewer from the Balsam Hill Development was 
installed in 2002. 

The lift station has a wet well/valve chamber configuration, in which the pumps are located 
within the wet well and the control valves are located in an adjacent valve chamber. All 
electrical equipment and controls are located in panels above grade. A SCADA system 
was added in 2014. 

The force main is 6-inch diameter piping and is 0.5 miles long. The original force main is 
ductile iron pipe material. In 2012, 620 feet of force main near the lift station and 730 feet 
of force main just before the discharge was replaced with 6-inch DR-11 HDPE piping. A 
summary of the lift station information is shown in the table below. 

Table 2 – Cascade Lift Station Information 

Cascade Lift Station 
Year of Original Installation 1987 
Configuration wet well/valve chamber 
Required Firm Pumping Capacity 320 gpm 
Current Firm Pumping Capacity (Unknown – not recently tested) 
Current Pumps Install Year 2018 
Current Pumps Power 17 hp 
Force Main Diameter & Length 6" Ø & 2,620 ft 
Bypass Connection 6" Ø 
Standby Generator Size, Install Year (None) 
Lowest Influent Sewer Invert Elevation 731.5' 
  



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

3.0 ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS 

3.1 Alternative A: Do Nothing 

The Hall Street Lift Station controls and force main are 48 years old and are at risk of 
failure, especially the force main, which has experienced multiple breaks in recent years. 
The compressors needed for the bubbler level control system are failing and in need of 
replacement. The option of doing nothing would leave the system in an unreliable state. 
EGLE has indicated that if there is another force main break, an Authoritative Consent 
Order (ACO) would be issued requiring the issue be corrected by replacing or lining the 
force main. 

For these reasons, doing nothing is not a viable option and is not recommended. 

3.1.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis 

Doing nothing would eventually lead to failure of the force main and the lift station 
controls, which would, in turn, result in SSO events, emergency bypass pumping, 
emergency repairs, and fines from EGLE. 

There would be no effect to the hydraulics of the sanitary sewer. 

3.1.2 Capital Costs 

No capital costs would be expended for this option. 

3.1.3 O&M Costs 

O&M costs would likely increase over time due to increased frequency of 
emergency repairs due to force main breaks and failing lift station controls. 
Sanitary sewer overflow (SSO) events, potential fines, and potential ACO 
expenses could further increase costs. The time that such costs would be incurred 
and the exact cost of fines is not known, but such additional costs could easily 
result in tens of thousands of dollars or more being spent. 

3.2 Alternative B: Extend Gravity Sewer from Cascade Road & Eliminate 
Hall Street Lift Station 

This alternative includes extending new gravity sewer from the Cascade/Spaulding Lift 
Station to intercept the flows into the Hall Street Lift Station. The Hall Street lift station could 
then be removed. The Cascade Road lift station is due for improvements in the next few 
years which include installing new pumps, valves, and controls. Only the additional 
improvements to the Cascade Lift Station that would be required to handle the additional 
sewer flows will be discussed as part of this alternative. The gravity sewer routing is shown 
below in Figure 2, and a more detailed preliminary layout is attached to this report in 
Appendix A. 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

 
Figure 2 –Alternative B Gravity Sewer Extension Routing 

The minimum slope for an 8-inch sewer is 0.4 percent, and for the purposes of preliminary 
feasibility planning is being kept at 0.5 percent to account for discrepancies between record 
drawing elevations and the potential need for currently unforeseen routing adjustments. 
The sewer invert to the manhole immediately upstream of the lift station is at an elevation 
of 740.21 feet. This sewer is at a depth of approximately 11 feet. The sewer from the 
manhole that is two farther upstream is at a slope of 2.30 percent, which is a greater slope 
than is required. The nearest sewer to the west of the Hall Street Lift Station is just west of 
the Balsam Hill development, and the sewer invert is at an elevation of 741.36 feet. A 
gravity sewer extension from the manhole immediately upstream of the Hall Street Lift 
Station will be too deep to flow to any sewer west of the Hall Street Lift Station, even at 
minimum slope. If the two sections of upstream sewer along Hall Street were removed and 
replaced so that the sanitary sewer extension could be routed from the manhole east of 
Gros Ventre Drive, this sewer extension would still be too deep to flow to the Balsam Hill 
sewers but could be routed directly to the Cascade Lift Station. The proposed sewer would 
be approximately 1,950 feet long at a maximum depth of 24 feet deep and would cross 
Cascade Road, which would increase construction difficulty and costs. 

3.2.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis 

Replacing the two sections of sewer with a new gravity sewer that has a flatter 
slope and higher elevation may impact the sewer laterals from seven residences, 
requiring that residential sewage lift stations be installed. 

The discharge manhole for the Cascade Lift Station force main has a 30-inch 
downstream sewer pipe, which has a capacity of approximately 7,180 gpm. The 
current peak flow through the sewer is approximately 3,000 gpm. Therefore, this 
alternative would not pose a risk of overloading the downstream sewers. 

The sanitary sewer flows that are currently pumped by the Hall Street Lift Station 
would instead be pumped by the downstream Cascade Lift Station, requiring that 
its duty point be increased from 320 gpm to 570 gpm. This would require that the 
Cascade Lift Station pumps be replaced with 50 hp pumps. 

At 320 gpm, the flow velocity though the 6-inch ductile iron force main is 3.6 ft/sec 
and 4.2 ft/sec through the DR-11 HDPE force main sections. At 570 gpm, the flow 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

velocity increases to 6.5 ft/sec and 7.5 ft/sec respectively, so flow velocity would 
still be in the acceptable range at the increased pumping rate. 

The existing wet well is 6 feet in diameter. The currently installed pumps can 
experience up to 5.7 cycles per hour, equating to 2.85 cycles per pump. Increasing 
the flows as described would increase the pumping cycles up to 10 cycles per 
hour, 5 cycles per pump each hour. This is an elevated number of start/stop cycles 
per hour, and would not be recommended for a greenfield installation, but 
proposed Flygt pumps can safely perform at least 30 run cycles per hour without 
impacting pump life. The 6-foot diameter wet well could fill up in less than two 
minutes under peak influent flows, which could leave very little time for response 
to an emergency situation. 

3.2.2 Capital Costs 

Several aspects of this alternative would impact capital costs: 

1. The gravity sewer would be deeper than 12 feet along most of the routing, 
and up to 24 feet deep south of the Balsam Hill development. This depth 
would require shoring during installation to limit the size of the excavated 
areas and impacts to traffic flows and increase the required traffic control 
measures. 

a. Directional boring HDPE pipe for gravity sewers is not an option, 
as it cannot be guaranteed to maintain a consistent slope required 
for gravity sewers. Open cut installation of sewer pipe must be 
utilized. 

2. The gravity sewer would cross Cascade Road, which would greatly 
increase the roadway reconstruction and traffic control costs. 

3. The need to increase the pumping capacity at the Cascade Lift Station 
would require larger pumps and replacing the wet well to increase the 
working volume, which would increase equipment and installation costs as 
well as greatly increase excavations, earth retention, and bypass pumping 
costs. 

4. The Hall Street Lift Station improvements would no longer be needed, 
saving an estimated $600,000. 

The estimated capital costs for this alternative would be as follows: 

• Gravity Sewer Extension: $2,000,000 

• Additional Improvements at the Cascade Lift Station: $200,000 

• Hall Street Lift Station Removal & Restoration: $100,000 

• Total: $2,300,000 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

3.2.3 O&M Costs 

Electrical costs for pumping would increase by an estimated $2,800 per year, as 
compared to the pumping costs for both Hall Steet and Cascade Lift Stations 
operating in their current configuration, due to the increase head condition for the 
570 gpm pumps. 

Emergency response calls would likely reduce to some degree; however, this 
would also be the case if both Hall Street and Cascade Lift Stations were improved. 
Therefore, no additional costs are anticipated aside from the electrical costs 
detailed above. 

3.3 Alternative C: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station and Pump to Balsam 
Hill Sewer  

This alternative would route a new force main from the Hall Street Lift Station to the west, 
to discharge to a manhole near Balsam Hill Avenue, where the wastewater would then flow 
by gravity to the Cascade Lift Station. Improvements to the Hall Street Lift Station as noted 
above in Section 3.4 would still be required, as would additional improvements to the 
Cascade Lift Station that were noted in Section 3.2. The force main routing is shown below 
in Figure 3, and a more detailed preliminary layout is shown in Appendix B. 

Figure 3 –Alternative C Hall Street Lift Station Force Main Routing 

The sanitary sewers downstream of Balsam Hills Avenue are 8-inch diameter at a minimum 
slope of 0.5 percent, which have a capacity of 380 gpm. As there are only 25 houses 
discharging to these sewers which should equate to peak sustained flows of 20 to 25 gpm, 
there should be no capacity issues as a result of discharging the Hall Street Lift Station to 
these sewers at the current pumping rate. 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

3.3.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis 

This alternative would have all the same secondary effects as described in 
Section 3.2, which includes additional improvements and upsizing of pumps at 
Cascade Lift Station, and poses potential for capacity concerns for sewers in Ada 
Drive. 

This proposed Hall Street Lift Station force main would be shorter than the existing 
force main, and the discharge elevation would be relatively lower, resulting in a 
lowered discharge head for the pumps, so the Hall Street Lift Station Pumps would 
also need to be replaced.   

3.3.2 Capital Costs 

The estimated capital costs for this alternative would be as follows: 

• Hall Street Lift Station improvements: $600,000 

• Hall Street Lift Station Pump Replacement: $100,000 

• Existing force main abandonment: $25,000 

• New HDPE force main installation: $500,000 

• Additional Improvements at Cascade Lift Station: $200,000 

• Total: $1,425,000 

3.3.3 O&M Costs 

Electrical costs for pumping would increase by an estimated $2,800 per year, as 
compared to the pumping costs for the Hall Street and Cascade Lift Stations 
combined, due to the increased head condition for the 570 gpm pumps. 

Continuous operation of the 1.5 hp aerator blower would increase annual energy 
costs by an estimated $1,500. 

There would be no O&M cost savings for this alternative, other than reduced 
emergency response costs due to equipment failure, which should be a result of 
any selected alternative. 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

3.4 Alternative D: Renovate Hall Street Lift Staton & Line Force Main 

This alternative would include making renovating the Hall Street Lift Station and lining the 
force main with a cured in-place pipe (CIPP) liner. The force main routing is shown below 
in Figure 4. 

Figure 4 –Existing Hall Street Force Main Routing 

Improvements at the lift station would include: 

1. Replacing controls, valves, bypass connection, and cathodic protection anodes. 

2. Replacing the reducing manhole section at the top of the wet well with a straight 
walled manhole section and a flat top with embedded access hatch. 

3. Adding a wet well aerator to alleviate odors by preventing sanitary sewer flows 
from becoming septic, as well as to provide mixing within the wet well. This will 
prevent formation of a floating mat of septic materials and reduce odors and 
maintenance issues. 

4. Lining wet well and bypass connection chamber to prevent water infiltration and 
corrosion. 

Lining of the force main would not require installing a new force main; instead, access pits 
would be dug at a maximum spacing of 700 feet and a section of force main piping would 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

be removed to allow access to line the force main so that a resin impregnated fiber tube 
pipe liner could be installed. The Hall Street Lift Station flows would need to be bypass 
pumped and/or truck & hauled for the duration of force main lining installation. 

At the Hall Street/Paradise Lake Drive intersection, the force main has two 45-degree 
elbows spaced approximately 27 feet apart. As most liners cannot be installed through 
elbow fittings, this section of piping would be replaced with new pipe, resulting in a larger 
excavation within the roadway and increased roadway reconstruction and traffic control 
costs. 

Street surface removals and replacements would be required for the access pits. Roadway 
closures along Hall Street could likely be limited to a single lane. Closures along Paradise 
Lake Drive may need to close both traffic lanes. The roadway closure at the intersection of 
Hall Street and Paradise Lake Drive would likely require closure of all traffic lanes. 

3.4.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis 

This alternative would have minimal secondary effects, and the configuration of 
the sanitary collection system would remain as it currently is. There has been some 
concern that lining of sanitary sewer piping increases production of sewer gases 
and noxious odors; however, there is no evidence that this is the case as the lining 
materials do not react with chemicals present in sanitary sewer. There could be 
the potential that gases are escaping through piping separations or reacting with 
corroding pipe, which lining would eliminate, thereby causing the gases to be more 
concentrated at the discharge point. If this is the case, replacing the force main 
with new piping would have the same effect, and this should not be a determining 
factor for consideration. If elevated sewer gases and odors exist, they should be 
properly addressed by reducing the contributing factors, and not simply be allowed 
to continue to cause deterioration of the sewer system. 

There would be minimal impacts to the system hydraulics. Replacing the force 
main with HDPE pipe would result in a slightly smaller inner diameter of the piping, 
but the HDPE pipe has a higher C-factor, which would help offset any potential 
increase in pumping head. 

3.4.2 Capital Costs 

The estimated capital costs for this alternative would be as follows: 

• Hall Street Lift Station Improvements: $600,000 

• Force main CIPP Lining: $650,000 

• Total: $1,250,000 

3.4.3 O&M Costs 

The sewer system operation and maintenance (O&M) would remain essentially the 
same as it currently is, with the exception that there should not be any force main 
breaks for 20(+) years. As the force main breaks are not scheduled occurrences, 
addressing the repairs would be additional expenditures that are not included in 
the annual O&M budget. Removing the likelihood of such repairs would help to 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

save Township funds, but for the purposes of this report, would not impact the 
current O&M budget. 

The existing HSLS pumps were replaced in 2018 and would not require 
replacement. The pumping condition of the HSLS would remain essentially 
unchanged, and there would be no impact to sanitary sewer pump energy usage. 

Continuous operation of the 1.5 hp aerator blower would increase annual energy 
costs by an estimated $1,500 per year. 

3.5 Alternative E: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station & Replace Force Main 

This alternative would include making equipment replacements and improvements at the 
Hall Street Lift Station as described for Alternative D, but the force main would be replaced 
entirely with a new HDPE piping. 

The force main could be abandoned in-place, and a new HDPE force main directionally 
bored. Directional boring the new force main would reduce, but not eliminate, the need for 
excavations within the right-of-way as compared to an open cut installation. Boring pits 
would need to be dug along the force main routing. At a minimum, boring pits would be 
needed at the start of the HDPE force main and at the intersection of Hall Street and 
Paradise Lake Drive. 

The force main on the lift station site and the piping that exits the dry well are also 
susceptible to failure and would need to be replaced, although the section of pipe that exits 
the dry well could potentially be restored using a different method due to difficulty of 
replacement. The dropped invert and the discharge manhole would be replaced. 

3.5.1 Secondary Effects & Hydraulic Analysis 

This alternative would have minimal secondary effects, and the configuration of 
the sanitary collections system would remain as it currently is. 

There would be minimal impacts to the system hydraulics. Replacing the force 
main with HDPE pipe would result in a slightly smaller inner diameter of the piping, 
but the HDPE pipe has a higher C-factor, which would help offset any potential 
increase in pumping head. 

3.5.2 Capital Costs 

The estimated capital costs for this alternative would be as follows: 

• Hall Street Lift Station Improvements: $600,000 

• Force main replacement in-kind with ductile iron pipe: $1,400,000 

• (or) Force main replacement with HDPE: $800,000 

• Total Costs (HSLS Improvements & HDPE FM): $1,400,000 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

3.5.3 O&M Costs 

The impacts to O&M costs would be the same as for the force main lining 
alternative (Alternative D). 

 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

4.0 RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE 

We recommend that Ada Township select Alternative E, which includes making improvements to 
the Hall Street Lift Station and replacing the force main with HDPE pipe, to improve the reliability 
of the sanitary sewer system for the Hall Street and Paradise Lake Drive areas. 

This alternative has lower estimated capital costs and lower ongoing O&M costs than do the 
alternatives that would reconfigure the flow patterns of the sanitary sewer system (Alternatives B & 
C). 

It has marginally higher estimated capital costs than the force main lining alternative; however, the 
final product would be of higher quality. Lining the force main would result in seams between liner 
sections and portions of new pipe between these liner sections, which would be points for potential 
failure. Whereas a new HDPE force main would be completely new pipe and should have a useable 
life of 50 years or more. 

Alternative E would present lower interruption to roadway traffic, residential access, and sanitary 
utility service than the gravity sewer extension alternative or force main lining alternative. Much of 
the new HDPE force main could be installed while the Hall Street Lift Station continues to operate 
the existing force main. Bypass pumping or truck & haul services would be needed only when 
replacing the start and end points, or when construction for the lift station improvements required. 
Ideally, these construction activities could be scheduled to take place concurrently to minimize 
associated bypass pumping costs. 

 



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A – GRAVITY SEWER 

EXTENSION PRELIMINARY LAYOUT 
 



P:
\2

20
19

5.
01

 H
al

l S
tre

et
 L

ift
 S

ta
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
\C

A
D

\D
W

G
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
G

ra
vi

ty
 S

ew
er

 S
H

EE
TS

.d
w

g_
12

/8
/2

02
3 

11
:5

3:
49

 A
M

_J
A

K
E 

B
R

U
G

G
IN

K

FIELD SURVEY / DATE

DESIGN DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CHECKED BY:

PLAN DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

OF

SHEET NUMBER

M
oo

re +
Br

ug
gi

nk
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs
20

20
 M

on
ro

e 
Av

e.
G

ra
nd

 R
ap

id
s,

 M
I 4

95
05

(6
16

) 3
63

-9
80

1 
   

 m
ai

lb
ox

@
m

bc
e.

co
m

PLAN SCALE: 1" = 200'

G
R

A
VI

TY
 S

EW
ER

  E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

FO
R

H
A

LL
 S

TR
EE

T 
PR

EL
IM

IN
A

R
Y

SA
N

IT
A

R
Y 

SE
W

ER
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S
AD

A 
TO

W
N

SH
IP

, K
EN

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

, M
IC

H
IG

AN

ALTERNATIVE B PRELIMINARY LAYOUT:
GRAVITY SEWER  EXTENSION TO CASCADE LIFT STATION

HALL ST. SE

CASCADE RD. SE

SPAU
LD

IN
G

 AVE. SE

FE
R

N
R

ID
G

E 
D

R
. S

E

11



Hall Street Sanitary Sewer Study 

Ada Township 

December 27, 2023 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B – FORCE MAIN TO 

BALSAM HILL PRELIMINARY LAYOUT 
 

 



Align-SAN_FM PROFILE

740

745

750

755

760

765

770

740

745

750

755

760

765

770

P:
\2

20
19

5.
01

 H
al

l S
tre

et
 L

ift
 S

ta
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
\C

A
D

\D
W

G
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
G

ra
vi

ty
 S

ew
er

 S
H

EE
TS

.d
w

g_
12

/8
/2

02
3 

2:
09

:2
3 

PM
_J

A
K

E 
B

R
U

G
G

IN
K

FIELD SURVEY / DATE

DESIGN DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CHECKED BY:

PLAN DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

OF

SHEET NUMBER

M
oo

re +
Br

ug
gi

nk
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs
20

20
 M

on
ro

e 
Av

e.
G

ra
nd

 R
ap

id
s,

 M
I 4

95
05

(6
16

) 3
63

-9
80

1 
   

 m
ai

lb
ox

@
m

bc
e.

co
m

PLAN SCALE: 1" = 100'

R
ER

O
U

TE
 F

O
R

C
E 

M
A

IN
 T

O
 T

H
E 

W
ES

T
FO

R

H
A

LL
 S

TR
EE

T 
PR

EL
IM

IN
A

R
Y

SA
N

IT
A

R
Y 

SE
W

ER
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S
AD

A 
TO

W
N

SH
IP

, K
EN

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

, M
IC

H
IG

AN

ALTERNATIVE C PRELIMINARY LAYOUT: REROUTING FORCE MAIN TO THE WEST - PLAN

HALL ST. SE

FE
R

N
R

ID
G

E 
D

R
. S

E

11

BA
LS

AM
 H

IL
L 

AV
E.

ALTERNATIVE C PRELIMINARY LAYOUT: REROUTING FORCE MAIN TO THE WEST - PROFILE



 

2020 Monroe Avenue NW | Grand Rapids, MI 49505‐6298 
T [616] 363 9801 | F [616] 363 2480 | W mbce.com 

March 29, 2024 

Re: Hall Street Lift Station 
Improvements 

 Project No. 220195.01 

Mr. Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Ada, Michigan 49301 

Dear Mr. Suchy: 

At the last BGU committee meeting in January, we presented a draft report on various 
repair options for the Hall Street and Fernridge Drive lift station and forcemain. A copy of 
that report is attached. The report looked into five alternatives that could be considered, 
and the discussion with the BGU committee focused on Alternative B and Alternative E as 
follows: 

Alternative B: Gravity Sewer from Cascade Road/Remove Hall Street Lift Station 

Sanitary sewer would be extended from the Cascade/Spauling lift station to intercept the 
flows into the Hall Street lift station. The Hall Street lift station could then be removed. The 
new gravity sewer would be 1,950 feet long and up to 24 feet deep. This would increase 
flows to the Cascade Lift Station, requiring additional pump upgrades. The estimated cost 
for this option is $2,300,000. 

Alternative E: Renovate Hall Street Lift Station and Replace Force Main 

This includes renovating the Hall Street Lift Station, and replacing the force main with a 
new directionally bored HDPE pipe. The estimated cost of this alternative is $1,400,000. 

It is always wise to eliminate lift stations and go with gravity sewer, but given the significant 
cost increase of $900,000 between the two alternatives, the BGU Committee requested 
additional life cycle costs for each alternative. 

We have prepared several life cycle cost scenarios for varying interest rates and 
anticipated maintenance and electrical costs for each of the two alternatives. They are 
contained in the Net Present Worth (NPW) summaries that are enclosed. The NPW 
analysis looks at the present capital cost, ongoing maintenance costs, electrical costs, 
and anticipated future renovation costs over a 25-year period and then converts these 
future costs into a net present worth amount. 



Mr. Julius Suchy 
March 29, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

P:\220195.01 Hall Street Lift Station Improvements\ENGINEERING\CORRESPONDENCE\LETTERS\letter to Julius with net present worth 
options.docx 

We determined the NPW amounts for 16 different interest rate scenarios, and have 
enclosed the results from three of these that assume interest and CPI increases for 
interest rates varying between 3 percent and 5 percent. The results show the following: 

Alternative B: Net Present Worth $3,281,017 to $3,476,635 

Alternative E: Net Worth $2,711,539 to $3,037,173 

These numbers represent the actual cost for each alternative over the next 25 years, 
assuming interest rates between 3 percent and 5 percent. So while it is initially $900,000 
more to eliminate the Hall Street lift station, it is an increase in the $500,000 range when 
looking at the life cycle costs projected over the next 25 years. 

We look forward to reviewing this information with the BGU Committee for further direction 
at the meeting next week. Do not hesitate to call with any questions. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Steven C. Groenenboom, P.E. 
Township Engineer 

Attachment 



MEMORANDUM

Date: 5/31/24 

TO: Ada Township Board  
FROM: Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: Appointment of Julius Suchy to the Grand Valley Metro Council 

Background: 

Supervisor Leisman currently serves as the Ada Township representative on the Grand valley 
Metro Council. Mr. Leisman has served as the representative since taking over as Supervisor in 
November of 2020.  

In discussing the transition to the end of Supervisor Leisman’s term, he has indicated a desire to 
step down from the Grand Valley Metro Council as his schedule makes it difficult to attend the 
remaining meetings.  

In November of 2024 when Supervisor Korth is elected, he can take over the GVMC role if 
desired. In my initial conversation with him, he indicated having me serve in the role on behalf of 
the Township.  

While serving as Village Manager of Sparta I served as the GVMC representative for over 6 
years and I am happy to do so again if appointed by the Township Board.  

Recommendation: 

Appoint Manager Julius Suchy to the Grand Valley Metro Council as the Ada Township 
representative.    

Requested Motion: Motion to Appoint Manager Julius Suchy to the Grand Valley Metro Council 
as the Ada Township representative.   

XI F



DATE: May 14, 2024 
TO: Township Board 
FROM: Clerk Smith 
RE: Retirement 

I have thoroughly enjoyed my 28 years working with this board at Ada 
Township, and specifically my last nine years as clerk.  It was my intention 
to fulfill the rest of this term until November.  However, my health issues 
are making it increasingly difficult to continue.  Therefore, at this time I am 
submitting my retirement date of June 24, 2024. 

XI G



Page 1 of 2 

Township Manager Report for June 5, 2024 
Submitted by Township Manager Julius Suchy 

Ada Township to Participate in Right Place Developer Day:  
On Thursday June 13th the Township will be host to approximately 50-60 individuals in the 
development and real estate world to highlight the Township and the work it has done around 
public/private partnerships.  

The tour will begin with guests arriving at the Amy Van Andel Library and following a short 
introduction about the building Haley Stichman and I will lead two groups through downtown to finish 
with a tour of Michigan Software Labs provided by co-owner Joshua Hulst. The tour will include a 
highlight from the rooftop deck overlooking the area that will be transformed through the Connecting 
Community in Ada Campaign. The morning will conclude with the group walking over the Covered 
Bridge to busses waiting to take them to the next stop on the tour.  

Ada will be the first community highlighted as an aspirational community and we are excited about 
this opportunity to highlight the many successful public/private partnerships that have shaped Ada and 
where the future ones – Connecting Community in Ada, will take the Township.  

Kent County Road Commission Deer Management:  
The Kent County Road Commission is currently exploring options to address deer management issues 
throughout the County. Based on their review, a significant portion of vehicle accidents involve deer 
and rather than look at solutions in specific jurisdictions, there is a desire to explore a county wide 
plan.  

They have submitted additional information with a request for potential funding from the Township. 
This request will be on the July 8th board agenda for consideration. I will forward to the Administrative 
Committee prior to it coming to the board.  

Kent County Drain Commissioner Update on Knapp Street Water Dumping:  
I had anticipated the Drain Commissioner Ken Yonker attending the June 10th board meeting but this is 
now delayed until July 8th. Mr. Yonker would like to provide the board an update on his plans to 
address the issues at Knapps Street Crossing that have led to water dumping in the Grand River in Ada 
Township via trucks.  

I have requested that Mr. Yonker provide some written materials explaining their plan so the board has 
a chance to review them prior to the meeting.  

River Street Construction Traffic:  
Staff has been working with our community policing officers to review the increased construction 
traffic and parking between Bronson Street and Thornapple River Drive. The purposes of the review 
was to determine if the east side of River Street should be a temporary no-park zone to ensure that the 
road is kept clear for public safety vehicles as well as the public. There have been numerous times 

XII A



Page 2 of 2 
 

when it is extremely difficult for vehicles to travel on River Street with vehicles parking on both sides 
of the road.  
 
Staff has followed up with our community policing officers to identify the next steps if this is 
something that the Township would like to explore.  
 
Trail Wayfinding Signage Update:  
Following approval of the implementation plan with Corbin Design I met with their staff to discuss 
next steps and the final schedule. The plan is to have the wayfinding signage bid due prior to the July 
8th board meeting so Corbin Design can review the bids submitted and make a recommendation to the 
Township Board on awarding the bid.    
 
14.9 Acre Property Purchase from Oxbow Update: 
The property closing took place last week and the Township is now in possession of the property.   
 
Committee Updates:  

• Building, Grounds, Utility Committee: 
o Still working on finalizing a meeting date to discuss the following items:  

 Friends of the AVA Library Sign Request 
 Review Proposals from Baker Tilly & Municipal Analytics for a full rate study 
 Other items as needed  

 
• Public Safety Committee:  

o A meeting will be scheduled to review information provided by Chief Murray regarding 
a potential change to how our upcoming fire truck purchases would be staggered.  

o Cost recovery ordinance that would allow the Township the potential of recouping cost 
– this has been submitted to legal counsel for review. Once the review is complete it 
will be presented to the Township Board unless significant issues arise during the legal 
review 

 
• Trail Committee: 

o A meeting will be scheduled to consider the inclusion of Pettis Avenue from Deer Run 
Ave. to Dogwood Ave. as requested by the Township Board 

 



XII B



Buildings, Facilities, and Grounds Report for June 10 2024 
Submitted by Dennis Brinks BFG Director 

Streetscapes: 

The first batch of cement blocks arrived Friday March 29th for the DDA flower beds with streetlights.  We 
are wai�ng on the second of three batches for the four-foot cement blocks.   We had ordered 108 blocks 
all together and they can only make 4 a day weather dependent.  BFG staff will con�nue to work on this 
project through the summer.  

Contracted Irriga�on and flower bed installa�on was a success.  BFG is monitoring the flower beds for 
moisture content along with the contractor RRR to insure the longevity of the flowers. 

BFG staff will also be edging the DDA sidewalks this summer in addi�on to cleaning up the benches with 
our new skid mounted pressure washer.   

BFG also removed the suckers from the Locust Trees along the down town streets.  In addi�on to 
rebuilding the island by the new Foxtail building. 

Parks: 

Contractor recently placed the new blown in mulch around Legacy and the Streetscapes.  Parks and Rec 
Director Deason and I will be asking the contractor to install this sooner next year.  Along with the special 
playground mulch. 

Made sure the fountain install went smoothly at Ada Park.  Come check it out, it’s quite the spectacle. 

Helped with the Forest Hills East School event at Roselle Park.  I had about 160 students go through my 
sta�on to help remove some weeds in the flower beds, mulch around the building, and pull some 
invasive Mugwort. 

Contractor repaired the irriga�on at Roselle.  There was a leak at the main shut off and the two outside 
spigots were not working. 

Facili�es: 

Hurst Mechanical was able to complete the first por�on of the preventa�ve maintenance and repair 
work.  This was just in �me before the hot humid weather and all seems to be running smoothly. 

BFG delivered around 16 yards of mulch to the museum so that their staff could manage the flower 
beds. 

New handicap signs are being installed to be in compliance.  The difference is the person is in mo�on. 

XII C



Trails: 

BFG is con�nuing to clean up the weeds along our trail system in addi�on to cu�ng back branches and 
mowing the edges of the trails that the property owners neglect.  This summer I plan to have the BFG 
remove the debris in the larger cracks and fill it in with bagged cold patch material. 

We also had a wind storm that knocked down a few large tree limbs along our trails.  BFG was able to 
open up the trails and haul wood. 

Atended a walking mee�ng with Township Manager Suchy, Engineer Groenenboom and White, Parks 
and Rec Director Deason, and Intern Sennet regarding the next trail maintenance. 

 
BFG:   

Safety Training is going well.  Recently we had Bloodborne Pathogen Training and Heat Stroke/Stress 
Training.  Next trainings coming up will be Lock Out/Tag Out and Hazzard Communica�ons. 

I am working with Township Manager Suchy for a so�ware to manage the Safety Material Data Sheets 
for the Township. 

Atached are some pictures of some equipment and atachments that the BFG is not using any more or 
that we had already replaced with newer equipment.  I would like to send this to auc�on so that the 
proceeds would cover a por�on of the newer equipment that we had already purchased like a push 
mower, suitcase style generator, and buffalo turbine.  Included in the auc�on list are:  John Deere broom, 
John Deere mower, DR walk behind brush cuter, Walk behind blower, John Deere Brush cuter, John 
Deere Roller, Honda Generator, and Toro Push Mower. 

  



  

  



  

 



Director Report for June 10, 2024
Submitted by DDA Director Haley Stichman 

Events/Sponsorships: 

Beers at the Bridge Summer Concerts: 6/21, 7/19 & 8/16 
We are just about two weeks away from the first Beers at the Bridge event on June 21. I’ve been working 
over the past few weeks to finalize day-of-event logistics and will be working to coordinate with the band, 
vendors, and sponsors this week to ensure a smooth set-up on event day. Elise (DDA Intern) and I are 
scheduled to be onsite all day on June 21 to oversee and facilitate the event set-up. Township staff will 
be accompanying us throughout the day to provide additional support. Set up this year will include 
fencing logistics as our BFG maintenance crew will be picking up the fencing from Give Em’ A Break and 
bringing it to Legacy Park for installation. Installing the fence ourselves is significantly reducing our event 
expenditures as the quote from Fence Consultants came back around $20,000 for the summer. We’re 
anticipating the setup to take up to 4/5 hours. Based on consensus from the board regarding the video 
screens to display digital banners of our sponsors, I’ve been working to confirm with a recommended 
vendor on pricing, dimensions and availability. Previous cost discussed with the Board was an additional 
$1,200 for delivery, set-up, and operation. I anticipate deploying this video screen on site for June. More 
details to be provided as I continue to work through all logistics. 

Progressive Tastings 
We have two opportunities for Board members to participate in June (6/12 and 6/27), with the June 12 
event coinciding with the launch of Music on the Lawn. We are considering rescheduling the June 12 
specialty event due to History Center representatives not being available this year and a lull in ticket 
sales this week. An additional update will be given to the Board once any schedule changes are worked 
out. The goal of Board participation is for the members to gain a better understanding of the Progressive 
Tasting experiences and learn more about what Ada restaurants and retail have to offer. Please plan to 
share progressive tasting promotional materials with your networks. Reach out to me directly if you need 
me to resend any information. 

Upcoming Events: 
Ada Village Farmers Market – June 11, 18, & 25 | 9 a.m. – 2 p.m. @ The Community Church 
Ada Progressive Tasting: The History Hop – June 12 | 4-6:30pm 
Music on the Lawn - June 12, 19, and 26 | 7pm-9pm @ Legacy Park 
Beers at the Bridge Summer Concert: Barenaked 90’s – June 21 | 6pm-9pm @ Legacy Park 
Ada Progressive Tasting: Art Groove – June 27 | 4-6:30pm 
Ada Township's 4th of July Celebration – July 4 | Parade kicks off at 10am 

XII D



DDA Summer Internships: 
Stella Sutton and Elise Taylor have come onboard as interns this summer. Stella will be working on 
communications and operations of the Farmers Market and Elise will be providing support for marketing 
and events, mainly Beers at the Bridge and progressive Tastings. Interns are expected to work together to 
research the idea of a shop local campaign for Ada.  

Streetscape Planting Management: 
Due to a delay is securing the full number of cement blocks from Busch Concrete, BFG staff are still 
working to finish up the streetscape improvements. This delay did not have an impact on our ability to 
move forward with irrigation updates or seasonal plantings. The irrigation updates to the flower beds 
were completed prior to the seasonal plantings on May 20. RRR Lawn has been providing weekly updates 
after each maintenance visit, and we’re working through some less-than-ideal moisture readings in a 
certain portion of the flower beds. BFG crews are continuing to monitor and increase irrigation schedules 
as needed to mitigate these issues. Maintenance visits will now begin on a bi-weekly basis and run 
through mid-October. I followed up with Dennis Brinks, BFG Director, regarding the lighter color tone of 
the new cement blocks utilized for the streetscape improvements. It was noted that this is likely due to 
different the types of materials used during the manufacturing process of the new cement blocks versus 
the sidewalk cement. Over time, cement oxidizes, which tends to darken the appearance so we will likely 
see the new cement blocks darken as well. These new cement blocks do have fiberglass in them as well, 
which may allow them to keep their vibrant color longer than traditional cement mixtures. 

Ada Village Social District: 
New social district signage will be deployed over the next week to denote the new expanded social 
district boundaries. 

Downtown Walkway Project: 
I have been working to complete the Mi Neighborhood Program grant application for the DDA pedestrian 
walkway improvement project. Applications for this grant are being accepted on a rolling basis and 
grouped together in two-week rounds for scoring purposes. The deadline of May 31 was outlined in my 
memo to the Board at the meeting in May. Additional material was needed to submit the application, so I 
have shifted my goal for submittal to the next deadline of 6/15. After submitting our application, we can 
expect follow up by July 17. Staff began to explore opportunities to make improvements to this 
pedestrian walkway located between Nonna's: The Trattoria (584 Ada Dr SE) and Ada Barber Shop (576 
Ada Dr SE) back in January. The conversation started as the current brick pavers posed some pedestrian 
safety concerns. The current sand base appeared to be eroding causing the brick pavers to sink into the 
ground. BFG staff have since fixed the uneven pavers by addressing the eroding sand base. However, 
long-term issues are still a concern. Initial cost estimates showed it being more expensive to relay the 
existing pavers after the base had been repaired, than it would be to replace them with new pavers. Since 
there is a necessity to replace the brick pavers, staff believe it is a good time to consider additional 
improvements to beautify the walkway and make it more pedestrian friendly. 



Shop Local Campaign: 
The goal is for the DDA’s summer interns to work collaboratively to establish a framework as the concept 
of shopping locally connects to the Farmers Market. Additionally, there is an opportunity to partner with 
Forest Hills Northern students to start research around the idea of a shop local campaign. These 
students have engaged in similar market research projects as part of the classes “Industry Month” which 
gives an opportunity to participate in project-based learning across different industries. More details will 
be provided as I continue to work through these details. 

Welcoming new businesses to Ada: 
The ABA will be hosting a Ribbon Cutting Ceremony at 4pm for Village Family Eyecare on Wednesday, 
June 26 for their grand opening. Village Family Eyecare is located in the former Sheldon Cleaners location 
at 7175 Headley St SE.  After the ribbon cutting, meet Dr. Heather Jones, enjoy refreshments and snacks 
and check out their new office! You should have received a calendar invite. Ideally, we will be able to 
have at least two board members present to represent the DDA. I will be planning to attend until 4:30pm. 

The Right Place - Developer Day 
Ada will be hosting a group of 50 during The Right Place’s Developer Day tour of the M-21 Corridor (Ada, 
Lowell area) on Thursday, June 13. This event will feature the Ada area as an aspirational showcase 
before heading East to Lowell via Fulton. Manager Suchy and I will be leading the tour groups around the 
downtown area to highlight MI Software Labs rooftop view and Legacy Park for placemaking highlights, 
then the Covered Bridge and the anticipated development of the Leonard Park property. 



Farmers Market Report: 

The Farmers Market kicked off its 2024 season this past Tuesday on June 4. Even with changes to the 
layout, setup went relatively smooth, with only a few adaptions necessary to get all vendors settled into 
place by 9am. We saw a lot of activity in the market throughout the day, particularly in the family 
programming area in the morning and at the new picnic table area during lunchtime. I had an opportunity 
to speak with almost every vendor throughout the day and the feedback was overwhelmingly positive. 
There seemed to be a consensus that it was a busy opening, with some vendors noting slower traffic 
times throughout the day. With kids still in school on June 4, I anticipate that the traffic will pick up over 
the next week. It was interesting to hear from some vendors that they didn’t necessarily see some of their 
regular patrons yet but saw a lot of new faces. This is encouraging. Community members noted that the 
market looked fuller, they were happy to see an increased number of new vendors and enjoyed the picnic 
area for dining in the market. Parking was noted as a concern, especially for those seeking accessible 
parking. We may consider shifting vendor vehicles out of some of the closest parking spaces to keep 
them open to the public. Additional signage is going to be necessary for clear communication. I will 
continue to seek feedback from the vendors and community throughout the season.  

Marketing and Branding: Stella (DDA Intern) and I have been working with Tara Heerspink to develop 
and implement an integrated marketing strategy for the Farmers Market. There was a lot of social media 
activity in the week leading up to the Market with a countdown to opening day. We saw increased 
engagement from the community and market vendors. To keep the momentum going, we will be 
developing a monthly calendar that I will continue to work with Stella to implement throughout the 
summer. The Farmers Market Committee will be meeting next week on June 1; the main agenda item for 
this meeting will be to review the new branding deliverables from local artist Gabrielle Eisma. As I work 
through the rebranding process with the committee, a timeline for launch will be developed.  

Programming: Kids/family programming is part of the Farmers Market’s larger strategy of becoming a 
vibrant community hub on Tuesdays in downtown Ada. The goal is to boost our offerings this season 
through our partnership with Cynthia Hagedorn/Community on Canvas. Pop Up pARTy activities and 
Storytime launched on opening day. Families can expect an expanded array of fun activities from 9 a.m. 
to noon every Tuesday, starting June 18 and running through August 20. These will include the “Rooster’s 
Crow” session at 9 a.m. with fun physical activities for kids and the “Hometown Heroes Harvest” at 11 
a.m, where we’ll be partnering with vendors and organizations, like the Ada History Center and Fire
Department, to highlight our favorite community heroes. The launch of these expanded activities on June
18 differs slightly from the tentative programming scheduled outlined in April. The intentional shift was
necessary to give some time to build up curiosity and allow for implementation of our marketing efforts.
Launching the expanded programming a little later in the season allows for something new and exciting
to keep families coming back.

Additionally, we will be introducing the idea of a community picnic to take place on June 18 to invite the 
community into the market with the intension of highlighting vendor offerings and encouraging patrons to 
shop while they enjoy the vibrant atmosphere. This is an attempt to connect with the lunchtime crowd 
and bolster food traffic from 12-2pm. We want to connect the audience we capture with programming, to 
the market area, so vendors can feel the benefits. June 18 aligns with the Ada Business Association’s 
commitment to hosting Summer Lunch Meet ups in the market on the third Tuesday of June, July, and 
August.  



Ada Township Fire Department 

May 2024 

Activity Report 

XII E



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Type May YTD 
Medical 23 128 

Vehicle accident 11 26 
Structure fire Ada 0 5 

 Auto aid 5 21 
Grass/ illegal burn 0 5 

Fire alarm 3 41 
Service call/ assist 0 5 

Good intent / odor/gas 0 5 
Hazardous condition/ CO 3 8 

Other calls / wires 5 16 
Vehicle fire 1 4 

Total 51 264 

Year Month/May YTD 
2024 51 264 
2023 47 268 
2014 52 228 

Auto aid Received Received Given Given 

Department      May YTD May YTD 
Cannon 1 2 0 0 
Cascade 0 6 2 8 
GR Twp 0 1 0 1 
Grattan 0 0 1 1 
Lowell 0 2 2 8 

Plainfield 0 0 0 2 
Total 1 11 5 20 



# Date Address Description Detail Shift Time #FF Assist 
216 5-1 5362 Abbey Mill Blvd. Med 3 Assist AMR w/entry 3 5:50 4  
217 5-3 910 Thornapple River Med 2 Medical 1 11:25 2  
218 5-3 Fulton & Sargent Vehicle accident Property damage 1 14:40 4  
219 5-3 3455 Goodwood Structure fire Canceled 1 15:00 2 To Cascade 
220 5-4 516 W. Main Structure fire Commercial garage 4 9:15 5 To Lowell 
221 5-4 4816 Fulton Vehicle accident I Watch – unfounded 4 12:51 4  
222 5-4 5444 Forest Bend Med 1 Medical 2 22:27 4  
223 5-6 6200 Cedar Run Med 1 Medical 2 17:34 3  
224 5-6 2605 Landsdowne Med 1 Medical 2 19:40 2  
225 5-9 421 Grand River Vehicle accident Rollover 2 17:04 6  
226 5-9 7128 Fulton Med 2 Medical 2 17:50 1  
227 5-9 4812 Aylesworth Med 1 Medical 2 20:01 4 Lucas 
228 5-10 7128 Fulton Med 2 Medical 1 13:21 1  
229 5-11 821 Moorings Drive Fire alarm Canceled 2 22:01 3  
230 5-13 9415 Bennett Med 2 I phone alert – unfound 2 16:49 3  
231 5-14 1124 McCabe Med 1 Medical 2 16:01 2  
232 5-14 58 Alta Dale NE Med 1 Medical 2 22:09 3  
233 5-15 1101 Buttrick CO alarm Battery problem 1 11:02 2  
234 5-16 7128 Fulton Med 1 Medical 1 15:18 3  
235 5-16 731 Ada Drive Med 2 Medical 1 15:39 3  
236 5-16 5716 Forest Glen Co alarm False 2 18:52 3  
237 5-18 Fulton & Ada Drive Vehicle accident One car 2 21:57 4  
238 5-19 Boynton Hills & Bennett Wires down Power lines 1 14:46 3  
239 5-19 9992 6 Mile Structure fire House 2 20:50 2 To Grattan 
240 5-21 1164 Bridgecrest Med 1 Medical 3 2:49 3  
241 5-22 330 Clements Mill Ct. Med 0 Medical 3 5:13 4  
242 5-22 9311 Fulton Vehicle accident Rollover 3 7:21 5  
243 5-22 Fulton & Sargent Wires down Power lines 1 9:02 2  
244 5-22 993 Bridgewalk Ct. Med 1 Medical 1 10:05 2  



# Date Address Description Detail Shift Time # FF Assist 
245 5-22 6275 3 Mile Wires down  Power lines 3 7:31 4 From Cannon 
246 5-22 7128 Fulton Med 1 Medical 1 11:55 2  
247 5-23 Fulton & Ada Drive Vehicle accident Property damage 1 13:33 6  
248 5-24 Ada Drive & Maple Hill Vehicle accident Property damage 1 15:00 9  
249 5-24 6001 Grand River Lawn mower fire In a field 2 16:05 7  
250 5-25 5877 Montreux Hills Fire alarm  False 4 10:27 2  
251 5-26 769 Maple Hill Med 2 Medical 4 14:02 4  
252 5-26 6990 Fulton Med 1 Medical 4 14:15 5  
253 5-26 Fulton & Ada Drive Med 2 Medical 4 15:01 6  
254 5-26 7270 Storeybrook Lane Odor investigation Natural gas leak 2 17:26 4 To Cascade 
255 5-26 9281 Bailey Wires down Storm 2 17:29 7  
256 5-26 Pettis & Three Mile Wires down Storm 2 19:14 4  
257 5-26 2501 Egypt Creek Ct. Fire alarm Power outage 2 22:55 4  
258 5-28 571 N. Whitman Ct. CO alarm Battery problem 3 3:38 1  
259 5-29 333 Grand River Med 1 Medical 3 1:06 4  
260 5-29 205 Boynton SE Med 1 Medical 1 8:50 3  
261 5-29 5817 Ada Drive Vehicle accident Canceled 1 14:53 0  
262 5-29 Ada Drive & Fox Hollow Vehicle accident Two cars 1 15:11 4  
263 5-30 7575 Fulton Med 1 Medical 1 11:39 1  
264 5-30 2790 Murray Lake Grass fire Field 1 13:45 3 To Lowell 
265 5-31 Gd River & Carl Vehicle accident Motorist assist 1 9:55 4  
266 5-31 2392 Pettis Vehicle accident  I phone no injuries 1 11:39 2  
 

 

 

 



Additional Training 

A few of our fulltime staff took part in a tabletop exercise which covered the Emergency Action Plan (EAP) for the many events we 
have taking place in our downtown. Kent County Emergency Management has had several meetings preparing an EAP specifically for 
Ada Township. Included in the planning were Sheriff’s Deputies, Fire Department and Township staff, along with stakeholders from 
the ABA, Discover Ada and CDV5 to name a few. This is a very thorough plan addressing many of the possible emergency situations 
that may arise during such a large event. 

Fire Training 

For the first time since beginning the Fire Academy last fall our entire Department was present for training. We took this time to 
operate several pieces of equipment used in the transfer of water. Rarely used is the porta tank, used where hydrants are not 
available. Tenders would unload 3000 gallons of water into the tank while a pumper would draft and use the water to extinguish the 
fire. The tender would then refill while other departments would keep a supply of water in the porta tank. It was a great hands-on 
exercise.  

Work Night 

Dinner was provided by Myrth our newest Italian restaurant. The crew loved the pizza and all that went with it! Following dinner, we 
broke into small groups to check the equipment and operation of all our vehicles and tools. 

Touch a Truck 

St. Roberts held their third annual Touch a Truck event this month. We had a fire truck and two rescue units on display for the 
students to enjoy. There were also Grand Rapids DPW vehicles, fire and maintenance vehicles from the airport and several other 
companies including the landing of Aero Med in the parking lot.  

Rides on the River Tabletop Exercise 

An Emergency Action Plan (EAP) exercise took place this month with 32 participants from 13 different organizations. This exercise 
was to discuss the EAP for the upcoming Rides on the River event, which can carry over to many of our other events. Various 
scenarios were discussed from weather conditions to mass casualty incidents and the roles of the many responding agencies.  



Kent County Fire Commission 

I had our annual meeting with representatives from Kent County Purchasing and Fleet Services.  We are part of the commission 
which funds a portion of our county pumper, they also provide fleet insurance coverage for the entire Fire Department fleet. On this 
program, the fire truck is replaced on a 17-year rotation, during this period Kent County covers all maintenance on this truck. Our 
next county truck is due for replacement in 2030, the county portion will be $ 220,000. 

 

Michigan Chiefs Expo 

De Vos Place was the host for the Michigan Fire Expo debut in West Michigan, Novi has been the sight for years. Two days of class 
and a large display of fire apparatus and vendors for all types of equipment. Our Engine 7 was on display for Spencer Manufacturing 
and Sound Off Equipment. Hundreds of firefighters and chiefs from around the state had the opportunity to take a look at our newest 
truck.  

 

On the Cover 

School must be out for summer. The last week of May had hundreds of students from Ada Vista and Ada Elementary on their final 
field trip of the year visiting the station. We also visited each of the schools to give them a cool down after a day of field games. 

 

 

 

 

 



Museum Manager Report 

Ada History Center – Kristen Wildes 

May 2024 

Week of May 6 

• Collections - worked with Sheri and Karey on new accessions. Worked on collections storage
organization. Connected with Marilyn T about sewing labels in artifacts. Worked on proper
storage for dollhouse & accessories.

• Admin - 15 yards of mulch was spread by Aleisha and the gardening helpers. Met with
fundraising & events committee to discuss our 50th/25th birthday party. Met with Karey about
volunteer coordination. Worked on sign-up genius for next month. Designed and ordered
banners and items for birthday celebration. Helped with board packets and attended monthly
meeting. Connected with Wesley at Parks about several matters. Working on history
presentation for Ada Congregational Church's fundraiser. Connected with Aleisha over
several gardening matters. Communicating with Robinson Family about their reunion in August.

• Publicity - social media post made about our 50th with the publication of Snug Little Place
history book & Mother's Day. Finalized content and edits and submitted article about Ada's
naming to Historical Society of Michigan. Working with Michael on future social posts.

Week of May 13 

• Collections - worked with Katelyn and Patric on photo collection. Worked with Karey and Sheri
on new accessions. Held luncheon for collections crew.

• Admin - worked with Karey on scheduling volunteers for June/July/August. Worked with Karey
on volunteer recognition event for June 6. Met with Art and Bernie to review and revise
proposed 2024 budget. Met with Sandy and prepared materials for our table at the Vintage
Baseball event. Processing memberships, new and renewals. Processing online gift shop orders.
Met briefly with Rhonda about gift shop matters. Working with Jeanne on MACC grant request.
Met with Marie about a couple items. Renewed our memberships in the Ada Business
Association and American Association of State and Local History. Scheduled visit from Ada
Elementary for May 28. Received and forwarded emails regarding road resurfacing on Teeple &
Bronson starting today. Created and updated org chart for committees and budgeting.

• Publicity - composed and scheduled Month@theMuseum email to go out May 29. Shared
upcoming events info with DiscoverAda. Updated website with all the Music On the Lawn and
Beers at the Bridge bands and event info. Made social media posts about: Mother's Day, our
Bridal Wreath Spirea plant, and two posts about the Vintage Baseball event. Wrote and
submitted article for June's Our Home Ada magazine about fishing.

XII F



Weeks of May 20 thru 31 

• Display - Meadow Brook Elem visited on Friday (approx 150 ppl) and Ada Elem visited on
Tuesday (~100 ppl).

• Collections - Worked with Gary on photo collections. Received donation of a pen and ink
drawing of the Ada bridge. Shared some info about Ada Beef with a researcher.

• Admin - Griffin came and all is well. John from the township's BFG to walk-thru the facility. Met
with Barb and Betty Jo about fundraising. Met with Wesley about America's upcoming 250th.
Met with Jeanne, Art and insurance agent, doing some follow-up work on documenting the
collections. Met with Sandy and Bernie about a new volunteer opportunity. Working on follow-
up meeting for vintage baseball. Working with programming/events committee. Looking into
purchasing a logo'd tent per Bernie's request. Attended walk-through at the amphitheater for
Music on the Lawn. Received vintage baseball images and a booklet from Keith W and Dale.
Worked with Dennis about getting the sprinkler system repaired and operational. Received
research info from the Robinson family. Met with Julius about several items. Met briefly with
Marie, with Betty Jo, and with Aleisha.

• Publicity - emailed to membership information on Plainfield Historical Society's Victorian Tea.
Emailed out Month@theMuseum for June.  Emailed with Kim from ABA and our board about
hosting reindeer for Tinsel, Treats & Trolleys. Connected with Mike about his Our Home Ada
article. Planned out social media posts for all of June. Supplying info to Ada Congregational
Church about their history. Posted about: Ada Congregational Church's Blue Star Flag for
Memorial Day and about Kreigh Collin's boat Heather and love of sailing.



Parks & Recreation Department 
Director’s Report for June 4thth, 2024 

Submitted By: Director of Parks & Recreation – Wesley Deason 

Parks, Recreation, and Land Preservation Advisory Board 
• The next PRLP Advisory Board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, June 20th at

8:30am at the Roselle Park Resource Building.
• The PRLP Advisory Board Meeting for May was cancelled due to a light agenda.
• The Design Steering Committee (established by the PRLP Advisory Board) will be

working with Progressive Companies on the design concepts and planning for the
Connecting Community Campaign in the coming months.

Administrative Items: 
• Due to all staff working and supporting the Township 4th of July Celebration and

activities on Thursday, July 4th the Parks & Recreation offices will be closed on
Friday, July 5th 2024.

Special Events & Programs: 
• On Saturday, May 18th we hosted the second annual Vintage Baseball Game in

partnership with the Ada Historical Society. This year’s contest was once again well
received by the community with over 350 people in attendance. The Ada team was
victorious for the 2nd year in a row.

XII G



• On Tuesday, June 4th our department in partnership with Paradigm Fitness held its
first Free Community Fitness Class at Ada Park. These classes will be held from
June 4th – August 1st on Tuesday & Thursday mornings at 9am.

• The Grand Rapids Triathlon is scheduled to take place on Saturday, June 8th and
Sunday, June 9th and will once again be headquartered at Ada Park. Parks &
Recreation staff will be working the event to provide support in our park spaces and
facilities.

• The Forest Hills Girl Scouts will be holding their annual twilight camp at Ada Park
from June 10th-13th. This year’s troop will be working with Parks & Recreation
Administrative Assistant Courtney Marek to restore all our parking lot islands to
create well-manicured native plant beds.

• Recreation Program Coordinator Ethan Engel has created a new Adult 6v6 Soccer
League which will begin league play on Tuesday evening June 11th.



• The Music on the Lawn Summer Concert Series in partnership with the Ada
Historical Society begins Wednesday evening June 12th at Legacy Park with live
music from 7pm-9pm.

• On Thursday, June 20th we will be hosting the 2024 West Michigan Conservation
Network annual partners meeting at the Roselle Park Resource Building.

• Parks & Recreation staff, along with other Township Departments are finalizing
details and planning for next month’s 4th of July Celebration.

Ongoing Projects: 
• BFG Director Brinks and I had the pleasure of working with Dursko Electric to get a

new fountain wired and installed into the Ada Park Pond.



• Significant improvements have been made to the Ada Park ball fields with the laser
grading and top-dressing of both infields thanks to services from West Michigan
Sports Turf.

• I am working on finalizing a final quote to have our pickleball courts resurfaced as a
part of this year’s CIP allotment.

• I met with the Kent Conservation District on Tuesday, June 4th to discuss the status
and progress of our Land Management Plan for our Parks & Preserves. 3 of the 5
sites we have contracted their research to be done on have been completed. Once
the remaining 2 are finished, we will review their findings and create a best practice
plan moving forward.

Other: 
• I have been nominated to serve as Vice President for the West Michigan Recreation

& Parks Association regional group which provides representation for West
Michigan at the state level.

• I will be attending the Parks & Recreation Director’s Summit on Wednesday, June 5th

at the Michigan State Capitol. I will have the opportunity to meet with legislative
representatives to discuss and promote the role and importance that Parks &
Recreation agencies play in our communities.



MEMORANDUM

Date: 06.04.24 

TO: Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
FROM: John D. Said AICP, Director of Planning 
RE: Department Activities Summary Report, May 2024 

Planning Commission 
May 16 Meeting 
The Planning Commission meeting consisted of the following reviews and actions: 

• Planned Unit Development (PUD) Amendment for expansion of an existing PUD for
commercial warehouse/storage facility (The Caves) with a total of 15 buildings (existing
and proposed) at 4900 and 4920 Fulton Street.  The Planning Commission recommended
denial of this request, due to the proposed changes to:  (1) allow for
manufacturing/assembly/fabrication; and (2) allow for outdoor trailer parking/storage.

• Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments to:  (1) Create provisions for public art
and murals.  The Planning Commission tabled this matter until further notice to allow
Staff the opportunity to determine if there is language that can be developed to allow for
public art and murals matter while also maintaining consistency with content-neutral
requirements for signs.

• Discussion of the Zoning Ordinance Rewrite Update.  The Commission and Staff reviewed
the process and various recommendations from the Master Plan.  Staff indicated that,
because the project is to be done internally, a definitive timeframe for completion cannot
be provided, although it is expected to take at least one year.  As well, the Master Plan
recommendations, such as adding different residential housing options to the Zoning
Ordinance, was supported by the Planning Commission.

Zoning Board of Appeals 
May 7 Meeting 
The May 7 meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals consisted of the following reviews and actions: 

• Request for signage variances, for the Ada Hotel in the C1/PVM zoning district, 7415 River
Street SE, Ken Dixon, Dixon Architecture on behalf of River Street Commons A4 & A5,
LLC.  The Zoning Board approved the requested variances.

• Request for variance, rear yard setback, to allow for a replacement deck in the R3 zoning
district, 4920 Burrwood Street SE, David & Joy Wahby.  The Zoning Board approved the
requested variance.

XII H



• Request for variance, side yard setback, to allow construction of a 2nd story addition to 
existing home in the R2 zoning district, 875 Maple Hill Avenue SE, Andrew C. Hess Trust.  
The Zoning Board approved the requested variance. 

 
 
Other Activities/Information 
Code Enforcement 
Here is an update concerning the most prominent of current/recent code enforcement locations: 

 
• 7626 3 Mile Road NE; trailers being used on property as dwelling structures.  Property 

owner informed Staff that trailers are no longer being used for occupancy, one trailer 
has been removed, and the other is to be removed by the end of June. 
 

• 8831 Bailey Dr. NE; front yard accessory building constructed without permit and no 
zoning approval.  Citation issued; court hearing scheduled for June 4. 

 
Additional Items  
The following additional activities and information from February are provided: 
 
• Director and Township Manager have been coordinating with attorney representing Township 

regarding the Kent County Conservation League (KCCL) site at 8461 Conservation.  Meeting 
with attorney and KCCL neighbors was held May 24 to review the use and activities.  Manager 
and Director will be following up with attorney to determine next steps. 
 

• As requested by Township Manager, Director sent letter to Forest Hills School District 
requesting courtesy of Township review, through the Planning Commission, of the proposed 
relocation of athletic fields at the Eastern Middle/High School campus.   
 

• Director continues to monitor issues resulting from Public Act 233 of 2023, which exempts 
large-scale solar and wind power projects from local zoning authority.  The Act mandates local 
permitting only of the affected local unit of government has adopted a “compatible renewable 
energy ordinance” (CREO).  The Michigan Townships Association (MTA) is engaged in this 
matter, with anticipated release of a model renewable energy ordnance once draft guidance 
is provided by the Michigan Public Service Commission (MPSC).  This matter will continue to 
be checked on. 

 
• Director, Township Manager, and DDA Director continue working with The Right Place as their 

annual Developer Day event is being planned.  The event, which will take place June 12-14, 
will include a tour of communities along the M-21 corridor including Ada. 

 
• Director attended Michigan Association of Planning Spring Conference on May 8 in East 

Lansing. 
 

• Department Staff attended Connecting Community Campaign kick-off ceremony at Leonard 
Field Park on May 15. 

 
• Director has volunteered to be part of the Host Committee for the Michigan Association of 

Planning (MAP) Statewide Conference to be held in October, 2024, in Grand Rapids, with a 
kick-off remote meeting on May 16.  A tour of Ada has been requested as a mobile workshop 
option for conference attendees; mobile workshops will be decided in the next month or so. 

 



• Director and Planner/Zoning Administrator have been working with the new developer of the 
Fase Street Crossings, as well as the developer of the Oxbow project, on minor changes to 
each of these projects.  For the most part, the proposed changes can be administratively 
approved.  Any review required beyond that level will be scheduled for the Planning 
Commission. 

 
• Director coordinated a meeting with the Buildings, Facilities, and Grounds Director and the 

Cascade Building Director to assist in awareness of building projects that may impact public 
improvements in adjacent right-of-way areas.  This could include sidewalks and trails, as well 
as the sprinkler system used for downtown-area public landscaped areas.  A meeting was 
held May 21 to arrange this coordination. 

 
• Director and Parks Director, along with Township Manager, hosted groups of second grade 

students from Meadow Brook Elementary School on Friday May 24, and from Ada Elementary 
School on Tuesday May 27.  The students were working on a community awareness section 
of their curriculum. 

 
• Director coordinated inquiries from the Ada Moorings neighborhood homeowners association 

(HOA) with Deputy Kate Chase of the Kent County Sheriff’s Department regarding temporary 
use of a Sheriff’s Department speed monitoring sign for speed control in that area. 

 
• Director has had the honor of mentoring a Michigan State University Planning Program 

graduate student during the 2023-2024 academic year.  The student, Mr. Gaurav Sagvekar, 
has now graduated with his Masters in Planning, and has received two professional job offers 
(in Chicago and Minneapolis-St. Paul). 

 
• In addition to the meetings/activities noted above, attended/participated in the following 

Township meetings/events: 
 

o May 2 Trail Committee meeting 
o May 13 DDA meeting  
o May 13 Township Board meeting 
o May 28 Township Board meeting 

 
 

Permit Activity 
Permit summary activity from Cascade Township for May will be provided as soon as it is received. 
 
 
As always, please let me know if there are any questions regarding this report. 



2020 Monroe Avenue NW | Grand Rapids, MI 49505‐6298 
T [616] 363 9801 | F [616] 363 2480 | W mbce.com 

June 5, 2024 

Re: Ada Township Engineering 
 Project No. 240102.01 

Mr. Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Ada, Michigan 49301 

Dear Mr. Suchy: 

This letter will provide our monthly update on various engineering projects in the 
Township. 

Sewer Odors – The Township Board approved the purchase of new impellers for the 
Fulton Street lift station at the meeting on April 8, 2024. These are being shipped (by boat 
from Sweden!) and will arrive in 6 to 8 weeks. Hopefully, these will help mitigate the sewer 
odors. 

Water Main Construction 2021/2022 – The Township continues to retain $25,000 that 
will be paid to CL Trucking after we confirm good growth of the lawns. Julius and I drove 
through the project last month and noted improvement in the lawns, but some lawns still 
remained spotty with limited growth. I also reviewed some of the lawns with Chad 
Lidstrom, the owner of CL Trucking. I suggested to Chad that if they wanted the final 
payment, they should make a formal request to the Township. At this time, we recommend 
the Township continue retaining the $25,000. 

Hall/Fernridge Lift Station – The Hall Street Lift Station was constructed in 1975 and 
needs improvements due to the age of the equipment. These improvements include new 
controls, new piping within the dry well, new bypass connection piping, wet well 
modifications, wet well and bypass chamber lining, electrical upgrades, and other related 
items. The discharge forcemain has had a couple of recent breaks and also needs to be 
replaced. Budgetary information for the project as well as our engineering services 
proposal will be reviewed with the Township Board on June 10. 

Trail Construction 2023 

 2023 Fulton Street Trail from Legacy Park/Fulton Street Bridge – The project is
complete, and we have confirmed good growth of the seeding on the steep side
slopes as shown on the photos on the following page. There were several areas of
erosion that were repaired with rip rap and Wyoming Excavators is requesting
payment for the rip rap ($4,950) as well as release of the $40,000 in retainage for a
total final payment of $44,950. The final payment will be reviewed with the Township
Board on June 10.

XII I



Mr. Julius Suchy 
June 5, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

P:\240102.01 Ada Township Engineering 2024\ENGINEERING\CORRESPONDENCE\LETTERS\Monthly Engineering Report June 
2024.docx 

   
Grand River View Looking East on Fulton Old Graffiti Markings 

Now that the trail is complete, there has been increased graffiti on the bridge 
abutment walls along the river. We have solicited an engineering proposal for new 
trail/security lights under the bridge from Century A&E. The concept has been 
approved by MDOT, and the proposal will be reviewed with the Trail Committee. 

 2023 Village East Residential Trail – This section of trail was constructed by the 
Wheeler Development Group as part of a development agreement with the 
Township. The agreement requires the Township maintain this section of trail 
between Legacy Park and Fulton Street after the East Residential buildings are 
complete. 

There are several areas that are eroding and other design issues that need to be 
addressed before the Township can accept this section. We have expressed our 
concerns to the developer and will meet next week to walk this section and review 
our concerns. 

   
 East Residential Trail Construction Equipment Marks Edge Drops/Erosion 

Trail Construction 2024/2025 

 2024 Trail Maintenance – The Township uses a portion of the yearly trail millage 
proceeds to fund maintenance of the trail system. This year’s maintenance project 
will focus on the trail along Grand River Drive between Fulton Street and Carl Drive. 
We walked this section last week with Julius Suchy, Dennis Brinks, and Wesley 
Deason to review proposed repairs for this section. Budgetary information as well as 
our engineering services proposal will be reviewed with the Township Board on 
June 10. 

 2025 Pettis Trail – Cannonsburg Road to Knapp Street – The Grand River 
Greenway Committee has contracted with LRE Engineers for the design/
construction engineering services for this 3.5 mile section. We are meeting with LRE 
later this week to coordinate our work as a subconsultant with them for the 1.5 mile 
section in Ada Township from Knapp Street to 4 Mile Road. 



Mr. Julius Suchy 
June 5, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 

P:\240102.01 Ada Township Engineering 2024\ENGINEERING\CORRESPONDENCE\LETTERS\Monthly Engineering Report June 
2024.docx 

 2024 Pettis Trail – Chief Hazy Cloud Park to Vergennes – We have contacted 
AT&T and Comcast to request that they proceed to place their low-hanging lines 
underground. They had initiated their design for this work last spring. This will 
hopefully be done this fall, and the trail can be built next spring. 

 2025 Rix Street from Adaridge to Ada Drive – Township Manager Suchy hopes 
to discuss this project with Forest Hills Schools to consider alternate routes that 
would utilize a portion of the Ada Vista campus to access the Adaridge 
neighborhood. 

 2025 Kamp Twins – We have requested MDOT schedule a safety review of the 
crossing. At the safety review, consideration is given to the installation of gates 
and/or warning lights at the crossing. If this is required by MDOT, it will add even 
more cost to the project. The safety inspection is a new requirement from MDOT. 
We had previously verified that this would not be a project requirement. 

 2025 Thornapple River Pedestrian Bridge – The topographical survey for the 
project is complete. We have reviewed the project with Dave Schulz, who is doing 
the hydraulic analysis for the EGLE permit application. I will be meeting with Pete 
Lazdins from Progressive Companies later this week to review the layout of the 
bridge and to make sure the bridge will tie in nicely with the Covered Bridge Park 
goals. The project will be constructed in 2025. 

 Knapp Street Bridge – We are working with the Grand River Greenway 
organization on this project. The current plan is to extend the existing bridge piers 
wide enough to accommodate future bridge widening and also to support a separate 
pedestrian bridge. The project estimate is around $8 million with funding provided 
by Grand River Greenway, the Kent County Road Commission, and Ada Township. 
We attended the kick-off meeting for this project, and we will begin the topographic 
survey of the corridor in the next few weeks. 

 Oxbow Development – We have been working with the developer and his 
contractor to verify that all punch list items for the water and sanitary sewer are 
complete before the Township accepts the water and sewer systems. 

Please call if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Steven C. Groenenboom, P.E. 
Township Engineer 



2960 Lucerne Drive SE, Suite 100 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.588.2900 
F: 616.977.1005 

Ada May Report 2024 06 03 www.fv-operations.com 

June 3, 2024 

Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive  
Ada, MI 49301 

RE: May 2024 Monthly Utility Report 

Dear Julius: 

Summarized below are the activities for the wastewater and water system operations for Ada Township, 
May 2024.  

UTILITY REPORT 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
 The May Monthly Operation Report (MOR) for the Grand Valley Estates water supply for the 

Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) is expected to be filed by 
June 7, 2024. 

 Attended developer and board meetings. 
 Coordinated work orders to change out water meters due to inaccessibility around houses or nearing 

the end of their lifespans. 
 Continuing work on Distribution System Materials Inventory (DSMI) for EGLE. 
 Completed the 2023 Consumer Confidence Report for both water systems. The report is approved 

and online for viewing.  
 Prepared documentation for the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) visit at Township office 

to go through reports. 

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS 
 Conducted routine lift station checks/maintenance on May 10, and May 24, 2024. 
 Performed routine water jet maintenance in Ada Moorings. 

WATER OPERATIONS 
 Collected routine bacteria water samples. 
 Responded to water pressure complaint for irrigation at 2295 Grand Valley Drive. Discovered the 

irrigation system going through the water softener before leaving the home. Irrigation works great 
when softener is bypassed. 

 Completed routine Miss Digs in Ada Township and Grand Valley Estates. 
 Water meter change outs set up with customers.  
 Worked with contractors to get inside the gate at the Ada Drive water tower. 

XII J



Julius Suchy | Ada Township │June 3, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

Ada May Report 2024 06 03 

EMERGENCY CALLS/OUT-OF-SCOPE 
May 2024 after-hours emergency call outs. 
 Confined space entries in two pits to install irrigation meters for the Oxbow Development. 
 Climb the water tower on Ada Drive to flush mud valve and install new light on top of tower prior to 

washing.  
 Emergency Miss Dig on Hall Street. 
 High level alarm at Ada Moorings. Ordered new power supply; expected delivery first week of June.   
 Confined space entry and traffic control to remove plywood and cloth from manhole on Spaulding. 

     
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
F&V OPERATIONS AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT, INC. 
 
 
 
 
Stephanie M Kozal 
Project Manager 
 


	Fulton St Trail Pay Changer Order #2 and pay App #5 Memo (Packet).pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	220208.01 Ltr to J Suchy encl Pay Rec 5 & CO2 - Fulton Trail.pdf
	Pay Rec 5 Cover Letter
	Fulton St Pay App 5 and Final


	Grand River Drive Trail Engineering Memo 6-5-24 (Packet).pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	240102.01 Proposal Ltr to J Suchy re Grand River Drive Trail - 5.31.2024.pdf
	Grand River Drive Trail Proposal
	GR Drive Trail Resurface Estimate from FUlton to Carl Drive


	Hidden Lakes-Resolution R061024-1 - Private Sewage Sysm Agreement and attachments-28 pgs.pdf
	MEMORANDUM - 6-10-24 Board meeting - resolution - Hidden Lakes sanitary sewer system agreement - FINAL.pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	Ada Township 6-10-24 Draft Resolution - Hidden Lakes Sanitary Sewer (3201 Egypt Valley) - FINAL
	Hidden Lakes (3201 Egypt Valley) - Private Sewerage System Development Agreement - FINAL DRAFT
	PC Minutes 08-17-23
	Sanctuary PUD Resolution
	CERTIFICATION


	Resolution R-061024-2 Road Closure for Ada Criterium (Packet).pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	Hall Street Lift Station & Forcemain Engineering Proposal Memo 6-4-24 (Packet).pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	Julius Suchy Appointment to GVMC Memo.pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	Planning Dept Report - May 2024.pdf
	MEMORANDUM




